
(next page)→ 

Sussex County Board of Supervisors Meeting 

Thursday, May 15, 2025 – 6 pm 
General District Courtroom – Sussex Judicial Center 

15098 Courthouse Road, Sussex VA 23884 

 

ZOOM LINK 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87133642867 

Meeting ID: 871 3364 2867 

 

==================================================================== 
 

1. Commencement 

1.01 Call to Order/Determine Quorum 

a. Approval of Board Member(s) Participating by Phone under Board Remote 

Participation Policy 

1.02 The Invocation 

1.03 The Pledge of Allegiance 

1.04 Agenda Amendment(s) 

1.05 Approval of Regular Agenda 

 

2. Approval of Consent Agenda 

2.01 Approval of Minutes:  March 6 Finance Committee, April 3 Special (BWS), and April 

17, 2025 regular Board of Supervisors Meetings 

2.02 Warrants and Vouchers 

2.03 Treasurer’s Report & Financial Update – for information only  

2.04 Departmental Reports – for information only 

2.05 Regional Water Plan Participation Resolution 

2.06 OEMS Grant Termination Budget Resolution 

2.07 Literary Loan Financial/Legal Costs Budget Resolution (High School Roof/HVAC 

Project) 

  

3. Recognitions/Awards/Presentation  

3.01 Recognition of Leah Brantley, Former Chair of DSS Advisory Board 

3.02 VDOT Six-Year Plan – George Bowman, VDOT Franklin Residency 

3.03 Atlantic Strategic Minerals Update – Craig Hairfield 

3.04 Nottoway River Recreation Study – Timmons Group 
 

4. Public Hearing  
4.01 Proposed FY2025-2026 Operating Budget 

a. Enter Public Hearing 

1. Public Comments  

2. Board Comments 

b. Close Public Hearing 

c. Action on Public Hearing Item, if any 

4.02 Conditional Use Permit – Blackwater Shooting Range 

a. Enter Public Hearing 

1. Public Comments  

2. Board Comments 



b. Close Public Hearing 

c. Action on Public Hearing Item, if any 

 

5. Appointments – none 

 

6. Action Items – none  

 

7. Citizens’ Comments  
 

8. Unfinished Business 
8.01 County Fiscal Policy 

 

9. New Business – none 

 

10. Board Members Comments 

10.01 Blackwater District 

10.02 Courthouse District 

10.03 Henry District 

10.04 Stony Creek District 

10.05 Wakefield District 

10.06 Waverly District 

10.07 Yale District 

 

11. Closed Session 
11.01  Convene to Closed Session  

a. Discussion or consideration of the acquisition of real property for a public purpose, or 

of the disposition of publicly held real property, where discussion in an open meeting 

would adversely affect the bargaining position or negotiating strategy of the public 

body; applicable Code Section 2.2-3711(A)3 

b. Consultation with legal counsel employed or retained by a public body regarding 

specific legal matters requiring the provision of legal advice by such counsel; pursuant 

to applicable Va. Code Section 2.2.3711(A)8 

11.02  Reconvene to Open Session  

11.03  Certification  

11.04  Action Resulting from Closed Session (if any) 

 

12. Recess/Adjournment  
12.01 Recess/Adjournment 

12.02 Next Rescheduled Regular Meeting: June 12, 2025 @ 6 p.m. 

 (June 19, 2025 is the Juneteenth Holiday.) 

 



 

 

At a Finance Committee Meeting of the Board of Supervisors 

Held in the General District Courtroom 

on Thursday, March 6, 2025 - 4 p.m.  

 

 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT 
Phyllis T. Tolliver 

C. Eric Fly, Sr. 

Steve E. White 

 

OTHERS PRESENT 

Thomas W. Baicy, III 

Rufus E. Tyler, Sr. 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

Richard Douglas, County Administrator 

John Broderick, Director of Finance and Business Operations 

Kelly W. Moore, Finance Director 

Deste J. Cox, Treasurer 

Jeffrey Gary, Public Works Director 

Julius Hamlin, Division Superintendent of the Public Schools 

Kelly W. Moore, Finance Director  

Regina Sykes, Commonwealth's Attorney 

Shilton R. Butts, Assistant to the County Administrator/ 

 Clerk of the Board 

 

Item 1.  Call to Order/Determine Quorum 

 

Chair Tolliver called the March 6, 2025 Finance Committee meeting of the Sussex County Board 

of Supervisors to order. 

 

Item 2.  Invocation 

 

Supervisor Fly offered the Invocation. 

 

Item 3.  The Pledge of Allegiance 

 

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited by all. 

 

Item 4.  Agenda Amendment 

 

Supervisor Fly requested to add under Item 8. Others, as Item 8.01 EMS. 

 

Chair Tolliver requested to add under Item 8. Others as Item 8.02 Supervisor Baicy's Request 

 

Item 5.  Approval of Agenda 



 

 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FLY, seconded by SUPERVISOR WHITE and carried:  

RESOLVED that the March 6, 2025 Sussex County Board of Supervisors Finance Committee 

hereby approve the agenda as noted.  All Finance Committee members voted aye. 

 

Item 6.  Courthouse HVAC Financing 

 

Administrator Douglas stated that Roland Kooch, with Davenport and Company, LLC 

("Davenport") attended as requested to discuss how the County could pay for the Courthouse 

HVAC System replacement.  He noted that the Board of Supervisors directed staff a couple of 

months ago to begin the process.  

 

Administrator Douglas noted that options to complete the HVAC System include: 

 

 Option 1 - Take money out of the Reserve Fund. 

 Option 2 - Short Term Financing 

 Option 3- Funding it from other Courthouse improvements 

 

Mr. Kooch noted that his partner David Rowe and his associate Sam Stewart with Davenport were 

present.   

 

Mr. Kooch that they were in attendance to speak about the essential and potential options to either 

financing the project or pay for it out of the Fund Balance.  He noted that there were not promoting 

anything one way or the other.  They are there to provide data and to give insight with respect to 

Fund Balance and consideration. 

 

He stated that one of the things he wanted to point out is Fund Balance.  The County has in the 

FY25 Budget Program has budgeted for the use of Fund Balance.  He stated that they looked at 

the audit for 2024, in the anticipation for budget 2025, there's some elements of Fund Balance that 

has already been program for use.  He noted that they have run some comparative numbers from 

year to year.  He noted that if there are other projects that the County is looking to do in the current 

year, the County may want to consider or look into Financing.  He stated that the more you program 

the Fund Balance, the more you have to be careful of how much you spend.   

 

Mr. Kooch stated that they wanted to provide a historical perspective of available Fund Balance 

over the last five years.  The County Fund Balance, available is Unassigned Fund Balance and the 

Committee Capital Projects Fund Balance.  The Unassigned Funds are there for the General Funds.  

Capital Projects are for Capital Projects.   

 

He stated that over the past five (5) years, the County has maintained healthy levels of Fund 

Balance at approximately 37% to 43% of Operating expenditures. 

 

In FY 2024, the County transferred approximately $2.1 Million from the Capital Projects Fund 

Balance to Unassigned Fund Balance. 

 

He reviewed the Available Fund Balance   



 

 

 

He noted that Unassigned and Committed Funds were both under General Funds.   

 

County Staff indicated that the $2.1 Million was used for a combination of Operating and Capital 

Expenses in FY2025. 

 

They spoke with staff, based on recent discussions, the $2.1 Million that was transferred to 

Unassigned Fund Balance has been use in FY2025 for various operational (recurring) and capital 

expenditures.  Approximately $1.35 Million was used for recurring expenditures.  In FY 2025, the 

County budgeted additional uses of reserves totaling approximately $220,000.  If all funds were 

being used, the ending estimate of Unassigned Fund Balance is estimated to be $9,924,462.   

 

There was inquiry of whether the Unassigned Fund Balance in the 132 Account.  It was discussed 

that it was the Reserve Fund. 

 

The County transferred approximately $2.1 Million from the Capital Project Fund to Unassigned 

Fund Balance FY 2024 ($6.6 Million FYE 2023 Balance to $4,8 FYE 2024 Balance.  In FY2025, 

the County budgeted additional uses of reserves totaling approximately $620,000.   

 

Projected Fund Balance 

 

Based on the projected use of Fund Balance in FY 2025, the County is estimated to end the year 

with approximately $14.1 Million of Available Fund Balance.  This amount represents 34% of the 

FY 2025 Budgeted Operating Expenditures. 

 

He reviewed the Available Fund Balance that is calculated as the sum of General Fund Committed, 

Assigned and Unassigned Balances as well as any Committed or Assigned Capital Projects Fund 

Balance. 

 

He reviewed the analysis of where the County stands in regards to available Fund Balance 

percentage of Expenditures was discussed.   

 

Key Considerations include: 

 

The County’s Available Fund Balance (i.e. Reserves) is just below the Peer Group Medians. 

 

The FY 2025 Budget appears to be balanced operationally, as the Budgeted Use of Reserves in FY 

2025 appear to be for one-time (capital) related items. 

 

Even with the planned use of Reserves in FY 2025, the County maintains healthy levels of Fund 

Balances. 

 

 However, the County should closely monitor its use of Fund Balance, especially for 

Operational (recurring) Expenditures. 

 Continued use of Reserves to balance recurring needs is not a “Best Practice” and, if not 

addressed, is a structural imbalance that could put fiscal pressure on the County. 



 

 

Davenport understands the County is considering its funding options for an approximate $443,000 

HVAC replacement at its Judicial Center. 

 

 Reserves appear to be at healthy levels and sufficient to fund this one-time capital need. 

  However, if there are additional one-time, urgent capital needs that require funding, the 

County may want to combine them in a financing with the HVAC replacement in order to 

preserve fund balance. 

 

Administrator Douglas clarified that the additional projects, that it's not the proposed campus 

improvements.  It's mainly the campus  

 

There was inquiry of the Sheriff's project.   

 

There was inquiry of debt service for $1.5 million over 10 years 

 

Item 7.  School Roof/HVAC Project Financing 

 

 

Item 8.  Others 

 

8.01 EMS 

 

 Drug Box Program 

 

 

8.02 Drug Box Program 

 

There was inquiry of whether the County need to move forward with Drug Box Program.   

 

Administrator Douglas stated the he thought that per the Chief that it was a universal project with 

the County dispensing drugs.  

 

Stony Creek and Waverly Rescue completed. 

 

There was discussion of scaling the drugs carried.   

 

Item 9.  Recommendation 

 

Chair Tolliver reviewed recommendations to include: 

 

 Line Item 210 

 

Line Item 253 Public Safety Vehicle Maintenance - Appropriate $25,000 for Supervisor Baicy's 

request for Stony Creek Fire Station repairs. 

 

Look at update of Drug Box Programs. 



 

 

 

There was inquiry of how to proceed with the Courthouse HVAC.    Supervisor Fly requested to 

make a recommendation that the Board make a request for a $1.5 million loan over a ten year 

payoff.to include It was recommended to provide detail with the costs.  

 

Item 10.  Adjournment 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR WHITE, seconded by SUPERVISOR FLY and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex Board of Supervisors hereby adjourned the March 6, 2025 Finance 

Committee Meeting at 5:13 p.m.  All members present voted aye. 

 

 



  

 

1 | Page – Minutes of April 3, 2025 Special (BWS) Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

At a Special (BWS) Meeting of the 

Sussex County Board of Supervisors 

Held in the Social Services Conference  

Thursday, April 3, 2025 at 6 pm 

 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT 

Steve E. White, Chair 

Phyllis T. Tolliver, Vice Chair 

Rufus E. Tyler, Sr. 

C. Eric Fly, Sr. 

A. G. Futrell 

Wayne O. Jones 

Thomas W. Baicy, III 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

Richard Douglas, County Administrator 

David J. Conmy, Deputy County Administrator/ 

 Economic Development Director 

Kelly W. Moore, Finance Director 

Deste J. Cox, Treasurer 

Ernest Giles, Sheriff 

Almetia Hardman, Chief Deputy Commonwealth’s Attorney 

Regina Sykes, Commonwealth’s Attorney 

 

 

Item 1.  Call to Order/Determine Quorum  

 

Chair White called the April 3, 2025 Special (BWS) Meeting to order 

 

Item 2.  Invocation 

 

The Invocation was offered Supervisor Tyler. 

 

Item 3.  The Pledge of Allegiance 

 

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited by all. 

 

Item 4  Agenda Amendments 

 

There were no agenda amendments. 

 

Item 5.  Approval of Agenda 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR  , seconded by SUPERVISOR  and carried:  RESOLVED that 

the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approved the April 3, 2025 Special (BWS) 

meeting agenda as presented.  All Board members present voted aye. 



  

 

2 | Page – Minutes of April 3, 2025 Special (BWS) Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

Item 6.  Budget Discussion of External Organizations Request 

 

Budget discussions were heard from: 

 

 Jarratt Senior Citizens 

 Cooperative Extension Services 

 Improvement Association 

 Crater District Area Agency 

(A statement was read.) 

 Jessica Ann Moore Foundation 

 United to Empower 

 Eastern Sussex Seniors 

 Airfield 4-H Conference Center 

 Rosey Legacy Foundation 

 Miles B. Carpenter Museum 

 Community Coalition of Sussex 

 

Item 7. Adjournment 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR  , seconded by SUPERVISOR  and carried:  RESOLVED that 

the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby adjourned the April 3, 2025 Special (BWS) 

meeting at     .  All Board members present voted aye. 

 

 

*The Clerk was not in attendance at this meeting.  Minutes were done from notes provided. 

 



  

 

1 | Page – Minutes of April 17, 2025 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

At a Regular Meeting of the  

Sussex County Board of Supervisors 

Held in the General District Courtroom on 

Thursday, April 17, 2025 at 6 pm 

 

 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT 

Steve E. White, Chair 

Phyllis T. Tolliver, Vice Chair 

Rufus E. Tyler, Sr. 

C. Eric Fly, Sr.   

Alfred. G. Futrell 

Wayne O. Jones 

Thomas W. Baicy, III 

 

STAFF PRESENT: 

Richard Douglas, County Administrator 

David Conmy, Deputy County Administrator 

Jeff Gore, County Attorney 

Chris Bailey, Assistant Chief of Fire & Rescue 

Jordan Baldwin, Kennel Technician 

Ellen G. Boone, Commissioner of the Revenue 

John Broderick, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

Debbie Broughton, Animal Services Director 

Deste J. Cox, Treasurer 

Jeffrey Gary, Public Works Director 

Ernest Giles, Sheriff 

Julius Hamlin, Division Superintendent of Public Schools 

Michael Kessinger, Captain 

Emily Matthews, Animal Services Officer 

Kelly W. Moore, Finance Director 

Christa Palmer, Animal Services Officer 

Michael Poarch, Planner 

Nick Sheffield, Chief of Fire & Rescue 

Regina Sykes, Commonwealth’s Attorney 

Beverly H. Walkup, Planning Director 

Victor White, Convenience Sites Supervisor 

Gary Williams, Circuit Court Clerk 

Shilton R. Butts, Assistant to the County Administrator/ 

   Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 

 

1.  Commencement  
 

1.01  Call to Order/Determine Quorum  

 



  

 

2 | Page – Minutes of April 17, 2025 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

Chair White called the April 17, 2025 regular meeting of the Sussex County Board of Supervisors 

to order. 

 

1.02  The Invocation 

 

The Invocation was offered by Supervisor Baicy. 

 

1.03  The Pledge of Allegiance 

 

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited by all. 

 

1.04  Agenda Amendments 

 

Administrator Douglas requested to table under Item 4. Public Hearing, Item 4.02 Conditional Use 

Permit – Blackwater Shooting Range.  He also requested remove under Item 11. Closed Session, 

Closed Session Item 11.01 Economic Development. 

 

Supervisor Baicy requested to table under Item 9. New Business, Item 9.03 Contribution to Sussex 

Service Authority for Stony Creek Wastewater Collection Operation 

 

1.05  Approval of Regular Agenda 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR TYLER, seconded by SUPERVISOR JONES and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approve the agenda for the April 

17, 2025 regular meeting of the Sussex County Board of Supervisors with the amendments as 

noted.  All Board members presented voted aye. 

 

2. Approval of Consent Agenda 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR TOLLIVER, seconded by SUPERVISOR TYLER and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approve the Consent agenda 

inclusive of the March 6, 2025 Board of Supervisors and Sussex County School Board and the 

March 20, 2025 Regular meeting minutes; (b) the Approval of Warrants and Vouchers; (c) the 

Treasurer’s Report and Financial Update; and (d) Departmental Reports; (e) Reimbursement 

Resolution for Courthouse Renovation Project; (f) Treasurer Request for General Fund Transfer 

to Reserve Fund; and, (g) Reassessment Services Contract.  All Board members present voted aye. 

 

3.  Recognitions/Awards/Presentation 

 

3.01 Waverly Hunt Club Donation to Animal Shelter 

 

William Derski, with Waverly Hunt Club, was in attendance.  He stated that he had visited the 

shelter several times.  Animal Services had helped them with some animals.  Animal Services 

told him they were trying to do some improvements.  He talked to their Board about it.  He was 

in attendance to provide a $1,000 donation to the Sussex County Animal Shelter. 

 



  

 

3 | Page – Minutes of April 17, 2025 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

Mr. Derski noted that Waverly Hunt Club had been established since 1943.  He noted that club 

had 70 strong members.  He noted that the hunt club also had 15 youth members that they provide 

activities to help them to better their life as a hunter.  He noted that they also had to provide a 

quarterly report about their work at school.  They are not allow to hunt if they are keeping up their 

grades at school.  Upon graduation from high school, he noted they are given eight semesters of 

no charge to further their education.  He noted that after the eight semesters, hopefully they would 

become members of the hunt club. 

 

Mr. Derski noted that the Waverly Hunt Club has adopted a highways to pick up trash.   

 

Animal Services Director Broughton and staff were present to receive the donation. 

 

4.  Public Hearings 
 

Supervisor Fly entered at 6.08 p.m. 

 

4.01  Commercial Property Assessed Clean Energy (C-PACE) Program Ordinance 

 

Chair White opened the Public Hearing by general consensus. 

 

David Conmy stated that at its March 20, 2025, regular meeting, the Board of Supervisors heard a 

presentation from Abby Johnson, Executive Director of the Virginia PACE Authority, which 

oversees the Commercial Property Assessed Clean Energy (C-PACE) Program. This is an 

innovative clean energy financing tool that provides 100% upfront capital to commercial property 

owners who want to upgrade their buildings with energy efficiency, renewable energy, and water 

management systems. Many of these designs and operations have been identified and/or 

conceptually designed for Sussex Green Enterprise Park (SGEP) and many significant business 

prospects interested in locating at SGEP have expressed an interest in this program becoming 

available. Because of the program requirements, solar farms would NOT be eligible for this 

program. 

 

Adoption of this program through its model ordinance carries no cost to Sussex County and would 

require limited staff resources to process applications and impose voluntary special assessments 

on participating properties. In order to be harmonious with recent state legislative changes to the 

C-PACE Program, this ordinance would have a delayed enactment of July 1, 2025. 

 

Staff recommended that the Board of Supervisors adopt the C-PACE Program Model Ordinance 

with a delayed enactment of July 1, 2025, and to give the County Administrator, or his designee, 

the authority to sign all necessary agreements.  

 

Copies of C-PACE Program Model Ordinance; Locality C-PACE Agreement and Appendices; 

and Virginia C-PACE Program Guidelines were included in the Board packet. 

 

a. Public Comments 

 

There were no Public comments. 



  

 

4 | Page – Minutes of April 17, 2025 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

 

b. Board Comments 

 

There were comments from Supervisors Fly regarding County’s connection to the loans should 

the applicant default.  . 

 

Mr. Conmy read and stated for the record, “that: (i) the County undertakes no obligations under 

the C-PACE Program and the Statewide Program except as expressly stated herein or in the C-

PACE Program Agreement; (ii) in the event of a default by a Property Owner, the County has 

no obligation to use County funds to make C-PACE Payments to any Capital Provider including, 

without limitation, any fees, expenses, and other charges and penalties, pursuant to a Financing 

Agreement between the Property Owner and Capital Provider”. 

 

He stated that it elaborated even further.  There was discussion of the Program Administrator 

responsibilities of the mechanics. 

 

Chair White closed the Public Hearing. 

 

c. Action on the Public Hearing Item 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR JONES, seconded by SUPERVISOR TOLLIVER and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby adopt the C-PACE Program 

Model Ordinance with a delayed enactment of July 1, 2025, and to give the County Administrator, 

or his designee, the authority to sign all necessary agreements.  

Voting aye:  Supervisors Baicy, Fly, Futrell, Jones, Tolliver, Tyler, White 

Voting nay:  None 

 

4.02  Conditional Use Permit – Blackwater Shooting Range 

 

This item was tabled during agenda amendments. 

 

5.  Appointments  
 

There were no Appointments. 

 

6.  Action Items 

 

There were no Action Items. 

 

7.  Citizens’ Comments 

 

Comments were heard from: 

 

 Courtney Cox [on behalf Waverly Rescue Squad Corp. (WRS) Attorney] – Addressed a 

few concerns on behalf of the WRS Corporation; how the squad would remain willing and 

ready to engage in a contract and provide citizens with EMS services; WRS as independent 



  

 

5 | Page – Minutes of April 17, 2025 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

organization in control of their own building; in control of their own equipment and own 

their own ambulances. Squad is providing structural home base, ambulance and equipment 

for ESS to provide the staff and to handle emergency services in the County. Recent 

concerns the lack of communication, specifically the legal ramifications of this comingling 

of drug boxes; over the weekend concerns about the ability/available to access drug boxes 

quickly for citizens; Sussex Fire & Rescue County's component - has  own drug boxes; 

comingling of drug boxes on WRS' trucks/WRS licenses & DEA licenses; concerns of 

HIPAA violation (patient care provided/use of drug boxes at time of need); blended of 

another drug box not under WRS license/control; Communication--WRS implemented 

series of policies for premises; WRS operate independent corporation; convey message 

WRS stands ready/able enter into a contract with County directly; communication of staff 

of who to work for/with; WRS holds liability and responsibility of providing trucks, their 

premises, using their license to operate; inspector showing up; accusations unfounded; 

WRS passed inspection. 

 

8.  Unfinished Business  
 

There was no Unfinished Business. 

  

9.  New Business 

 

9.01  FY25-26 Proposed Operating Budget 

 

Administrator Douglas stated that the presented proposed budget was balance with no tax increase.  

However, he was also giving the Board the option and flexibility to accommodate up to a five 

cents (5¢) increase to pay for some of the items discussed in the Big Ticket that were not able to 

be incorporated.  The Board is given the option to stay at 53¢, increase to 58¢ or somewhere in 

between those numbers. 

 

He noted that the Budget Message was in the packet. 

 

Administrator Douglas noted that there was no Fund appropriation for the proposed budget.  No 

proposed new fees.  However, it does incorporate, for the first, new fees for Meals Tax, estimated 

at $400,000. 

 

He highlighted the proposed budget is maintaining the existing County level funding for the Public 

Schools. 

 

Administrator Douglas noted that the budget included a three percent (3%) salary increase for all 

County employees, as well as a one-time one and one-half percent (1.5%) bonus that matches what 

the Comp Board and DSS intend to do.  He stated that an 11% increase in Health Insurance, still 

maintaining placing no burden on the employees.   

 

Administrator Douglas noted that two things were done to balance the budget.  He pointed out that 

Children's Services were maintained at level funding. Administrator Douglas stated that he, CSA 

Staff met with School Staff to review project needs and services provided.  He noted that 



  

 

6 | Page – Minutes of April 17, 2025 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

projections reflect that there could be an increase of as much as $870,000 more the next fiscal.  

Administrator Douglas noted to keep in mind that likely, additional funds might be needed.  The 

Board may want to consider a tax increase to provide accommodation for additional costs for CSA.   

 

Administrator Douglas stated that the other item to balance the budget was not including the 

Holiday Pay for the Sheriff's office.  They are still working the numbers for accuracy.  He noted 

that he would like the County to adopt the transition away from Holiday Pay and transition away 

from Compensation time.  He noted that the approximate costs are about $250,000.    

 

Administrator Douglas stated that he would really like the Board to look at funding the Sheriff's 

pay, as well as finding additional funding for CSA.   

 

He advised that the Proposed Budget's Public Hearing is scheduled for May 15, 2025 and, 

hopefully, working towards adoption on May 29, 2025.   

 

There was discussion of singling out certain positions for additional raises.  There was discussion 

of back up positions and cross training.  There was discussion of a job description for already 

created for the CSA back up position in addition to the Accounts Payable Clerk position.  

Administrator Douglas noted that the CSA Back Up position is OSC required. 

 

There was discussion of Compensation Study.  There was discussion of long-term training.   

 

There was discussion of scheduling a meeting for April 30, 2025 to continue budget discussions 

and IDA appointments.  

 

There was inquiry as to who would pay for Davenport.  Mike Kearns advised that the Sussex 

Service Authority  

 

9.02  EMS Contractual Services Options 44:54 

 

Supervisor Fly stated that there is an untenable situation with Waverly Rescue Squad and County.   

 

Supervisor Fly stated that there was additional money in the budget for the County to hire its own 

people, which would taking the billing away from the Rescue Squads in this budget cycle. 

 

Supervisor Fly made the motion, seconded by Supervisor Futrell that the Board of Supervisors 

request that the County Administrator authorizes Chief 1 or Chief 2 to work with Waverly and 

Stony Creek Rescue Squads, as well as the County Attorney, to bring back a contract for the 

Board's consideration that will have the rescue squads taking complete control of their operations; 

and that the County would be making contractual payments to the Rescue Squads.   

 

There was discussion of the County previously approving the 24-Month Plan. There was inquiry 

as to whether Chief Sheffield or Assistant Chief Bailey be managing or whether they would be 

phased out. There was inquiry as to whom would be managing/running the operation. 

 



  

 

7 | Page – Minutes of April 17, 2025 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

Chair White stated that he didn't think they would be phased out.  He stated that it would give 

some communication between the contract itself and the individuals that actually own all of the 

equipment.   

 

There was inquiry as to whether the people hired will be the paid staff at Waverly Rescue and not 

at Stony Creek Rescue Squad.  There was inquiry as to whether the County would need or have a 

demand for Chief 1 and Chief 2.  It was noted that there is still Fire and Rescue.  There was inquiry 

of who would be responsible for paying the contractor to provide the service.  It was stated that 

the County would be responsible for paying for the services.  There was inquiry as to the amount 

of money generated now for the services provided.  It was suggested that if the Squads was going 

to provide services and generate the revenue, allow the squads take the revenue and provide the 

services and leave the County out it.  Allow the Squads to hire the contractor and provide the 

services.  It was noted that the County didn't know the amount of money being generated from the 

Squads.   

 

There was discussion of previous operations and management of the contracts. 

 

Chair White stated that it would still be a contract as place now.  The change would be the levels 

of management. 

 

There was discussion of the Board spending a large amount time developing a strategic plan for 

Fire and Rescue to include construction, land and being current as other localities are.  There was 

discussion of concerns of going backward. 

 

There was inquiry of the County Administrator's opinion.  Administrator Douglas stated that a 24-

Month Plan was developed.  His recommendation is to move forward with the 24-Month Plan.  He 

noted that if it's lesser space, that it was one thing.  He stated that it has demonstrated that the 

County can successfully operate EMS.  Administrator Douglas stated that he was concerned with 

being a blank check.  The County could be paying more the staffing.  

 

There was discussion of concerns with having sustainable operations with EMS.  He noted that 

Stony Creek Rescue has volunteers; however, there are no volunteer on the Waverly Rescue side. 

 

Supervisor Tyler suggested that before a contract is done, have a committee involved to explore 

all of the options of working with County Administration.  Then review the options of what it 

would cost and before moving forward and then move to have the County Attorney to draw up a 

contract. Supervisor Tyler requested to form a committee to explore options of developing a 

contract on how the County can operate the existing emergency services outside that excludes 

the County. 

 

After discussion, Supervisor Fly amended his motion.  Supervisor Baicy suggested to have the 

Chief of Fire and Rescue to speak as to what he thinks will work.  There was discussion of the 24-

Month Plan.  There was discussion of previous five-year plan being turned over to the County at 

no costs.  Supervisor Fly stated that Waverly Rescue Squad (WRS) needed the County to back a 

loan.to build a new rescue squad building.  He discussed that WRS was planning to turn over the 

old and new building, equipment and all of their trucks over to the County in five years and retire.  



  

 

8 | Page – Minutes of April 17, 2025 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

Supervisor Fly that the County severed their relationship with WRS before the 5-Year Plan was 

executed.   

 

Chief Sheffield stated that they would be happy to come up with some options.  He stated that they 

had already established some options to modify staffing which also increases their service delivery 

options.  He stated that they would collaborate with the rescue squads and go through in form of 

what contracts would look like.  He stated that every one option they have on the table would be 

presented to the Board.  He stated that it would include movement of ambulances from station to 

station.  It's going to include expanding services in the Henry District.  It's going to include to gain 

more volunteers; how to work more collaboratively with the school.  He stated that Chief Bailey 

is working on training and how do they get that in there.  He stated that he and Dr. Hamlin have 

already spoken about the volunteer recruitment side.    Chief Sheffield stated that in regards to that 

money.  He stated that each of squads does bill.  Each of the rescue squads operate off of that 

money.  He stated that there's a net profit to that and that nobody knows what that net profit is.  He 

stated that they haven't seen tax returns for everybody for every year.  He stated that they have 

seen taxes up to 2019 for Stony Creek Rescue Squad.  He can give the Board exactly what that 

looks like.  He stated that he could provide Waverly Rescue up to 2023.  He stated that from a 

financial perspective, he could provide the Board with all of the information to make an educated 

decision.   

 

Chief Sheffield stated that it's his job to provide the facts.  It's his job to protect the citizens. He 

cares about the County.  He cares doing things the way they should be done.  He thinks that the 

citizens need to know what that service delivery expectation is whether they are being met, as well 

as what the response times.  He stated that the citizens needed to know inequality and inequity in 

service across the County. 

 

Chair White requested Chief Sheffield to bring the Board the costs for paid services.  Chief 

Sheffield explained and provided a scenario that if you place staffing costs in one pot and 

operational costs in another pot, it may cost $100, 000 to operate; however, the squad is bring 

$300,000 in revenue, costs are being offset.  There is $200,000 in net profit.  There is inquiry of 

where is that profit going.  He noted each year, Form 990 are filed and are being requested to see 

the payment for the contracts look like.  The profit goes back in operation costs. 

 

Chief Sheffield requested clarity as to whether a set amount or number is needed regarding the 

Fire Department staffing.  Chair White stated that whatever the NFPA required. 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FLY, seconded by SUPERVISOR TYLER and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors authorize the County Administrator to 

authorize the Chief of Fire and Rescue to bring back to the County different operational options 

for EMS including a sole source contract with the Rescue Squads themselves. 

Voting aye:  Supervisors Baicy, Fly, Futrell, Jones, Tolliver, Tyler, White 

Voting nay:  none 

 

9.03  Contribution to Sussex Service Authority for Stony Creek Wastewater Collection 

Operation 

 



  

 

9 | Page – Minutes of April 17, 2025 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

 

This item was tabled during agenda amendments. 

 

9.04  Sussex Service Authority Wastewater Improvement Loan 

 

Administrator Douglas stated that the Sussex Service Authority (SSA) was recently awarded a 

$3.95 million funding package from the Virginia Resources Authority (VRA) to address inflow 

and infiltration problems in their wastewater collection system (these improvements are subject to 

a DEQ consent order). This funding includes a $2,765,000 Principal Repayment Loan, which must 

be backed by a moral obligation pledge of Sussex County through a support agreement (co-signing 

for the loan).  According to the attached award letter, VRA will not enter into the financing 

agreement without the “security and credit enhancement” of the support agreement.  

 

Staff is not requesting a decision on approving the support agreement at the April regular meeting, 

but providing for discussion and consideration for a possible decision by the May regular meeting 

so that SSA knows how to proceed.  Staff does not recommend approval of the support agreement 

until at least Davenport concludes a fiscal impact analysis for SSA that supports its ability to cover 

the loan payments.   

 

There was inquiry as to how will this loan effect the County in which they are asking the County 

to co-sign.  It stated that if the SSA that if they couldn't pay the loan, the County would be 

responsible for paying the loan. There was inquiry as to how stable is SSA's finance that the County 

could be confident that they, Sussex Service Authority, could pay $3.95 million loan back. 

 

Ms. Seward stated that her purpose of being on the Sussex Service Authority Board was to find 

out the financial condition, financially where they were. It has taken two years.  Davenport has 

taken a while.  She noted that it is not a pretty picture.  She stated that she thinks the question for 

the County is how big of a risk it is to co-sign for this loan.    She stated that SSA has some debts 

coming off.  They have about 8 or 9 months of things being extremely tight.   

 

She stated that the bigger problem for SSA is that the Department of Corrections is being the 80% 

user.  (She noted that a memo was sent to the County.) They have grown out the system to serve 

other residents of the County.  There aren't enough users to sustain the system, because for 20+ 

years, there was no rate increase.  The costs have continued to rise.  They have been basically 

"robbing Peter to pay Paul".  She believes the questions for the County is that the non-DOC side 

of the system currently has an 11-day operating capital.   

 

They have been dealing with repairs due the DEQ Consent Order.  To get out of the almost 

insolvency for the non-DOC side of the system, SSA has a series of rate increases year, over year, 

over year.  Ms. Seward noted that when you go to the end of the Davenport 's model, people will 

be paying for combined water and sewer almost $160 a month.  She stated that it is her opinion 

that the only way solve or get out the situation, the current Board and future Boards have to commit 

to the Davenport model to get out of the hole for the non-DOC side of the system.  Ms. Seward 

noted that the Sussex Service Authority has a plan if it is adhered to or followed. It would probably 

be safe.  However, she doesn't know if there's the political will to stick to the Davenport plan.   

 



  

 

10 | Page – Minutes of April 17, 2025 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

Dr. Tolliver stated that she doesn't feel that the County can make a decision to co-sign loan of 

$3.95 million loan.  The County needs to meet with Sussex Service Authority to discuss the 

request. 

 

Mike Kearns provided a brief summary of what was discussed.  He stated that they were basically 

asking the County to co-sign on their I&I Loan.  He noted that of the $3.95 million loan, 

$2,765,000 million will have to be repaid with a principal repayment of 0.50% comprised interest 

to the Fund of 0,30% and a fee of 0.0% for administrative and management services attributable 

to the loan.  (Comprised information taken from VRA memo included in the Board packet.)  A 

portion of the loan was forgiven.   

 

Mike Kearns (SSA Executive Director), Susan Seward (SSA Board Chair) and Brandon Walton 

(the new Finance Director) attended to address any questions about the project.  

 

After discussion, the Board decided to meet Thursday, April 30, 2025 at 11:00 a.m.   

 

A copy of the VRA award letter was included in the Board packet. Sussex Service Authority 

provided a handout to the Board. 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR TOLLIVER, seconded by SUPERVISOR TYLER and 

carried:  RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby scheduled to meet 

April 30, 2025 to discuss the Sussex Service Authority, the FY26 Proposed Budget and IDA 

Appointments. 

Voting aye:  Supervisors Baicy, Fly, Futrell, Jones, Tolliver, Tyler, White 

Voting nay:  none 

 

9.05  Proposed Agritourism Ordinance 

 

Deputy Count Administrator/Director of Economic Director David Conmy stated that during its 

December 2024 strategic planning retreat, the County Board of Supervisors discussed the concept 

of promoting more agritourism-related businesses in the local economy. This is a form of tourism 

that combines agricultural production and/or processing with tourism activities, attracting visitors 

to farms, ranches, or other agricultural businesses for entertainment, education, or recreational 

purposes, while also generating income for the farm or business owner. 

 

With its strong agricultural roots, adoption of a local agritourism ordinance could capitalize upon 

existing strengths in Sussex County. Moreover, it could empower many existing farming and farm-

related businesses in the County while also having a secondary positive effect on the local 

economy in the form of jobs and additional local revenue (sales tax, lodging tax, meals tax). 

 

Several other rural Virginia communities have experienced a lot of success through promoting 

their communities through agritourism. The County has taken several actions to already boost this 

activity through participation in the Salty Southern Route and the recreational planning study for 

the Nottoway River. An agritourism ordinance would further enshrine and promote this program 

to benefit the County. 

 



  

 

11 | Page – Minutes of April 17, 2025 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

No action was needed at this time. Based on discussion and general direction by the Board of 

Supervisors, staff will continue to research the topic and present an agritourism ordinance for 

consideration by the Board of Supervisors at a later date. 

 

10.  Board Member Comments 
 

10.01  Blackwater District – none 

 

10.02 Courthouse District – Holy Week and Resurrection Sundat; be safe. 

 

10.03 Henry District – none 

 

10.04 Stony Creek District – County move forward with Ordinance for debris, trash; complaints. 

 

10.05 Wakefield District – Tough decisions to make; need revenue. 

 

10.06  Waverly District – Lobb Shop Road (West End) have Sheffield - trailer fire; safety issue 

of trailers. 

 

10.07 Yale District – Board priorities; budget; Sussex Service Authority. 

 

11.  Closed Session 

 

There was no Closed Session.  Closed Session items were removed during agenda amendments. 

 

12.  Continued/Adjourned 

 

12.01 Recess 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR TYLER, seconded by SUPERVISOR TOLLIVER and carried:  

RESOLVED that the April 17, 2025 regular meeting of the Sussex County Board of Supervisors 

at 8:10 p.m. recessed to continue the Board of Supervisors meeting to Thursday, April 30, 2025 at 

6:00 p.m.  All Board members present voted aye. 

 

12.02 Next Meeting 

 

The next regular Board of Supervisors meeting is scheduled to be held, Thursday, May 15, 2025 

at 6 p.m. 

 



























2.03

Consent Agenda - Page 1

sricks
Highlight



Consent Agenda - Page 2



Consent Agenda - Page 3



Consent Agenda - Page 4



Consent Agenda - Page 5



Consent Agenda - Page 6



Consent Agenda - Page 7



Consent Agenda - Page 8



BUILDING 

INSPECTIONS  

DEPARTMENT 

  May 15, 2025 

Monthly Reports 

 

2.04 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
               
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Consent Agenda - Page 9



SUSSEX COUNTY

INSPECTION PERFORMANCE

BY DISTRICT AND PASS/FAIL RATE

APRIL 2025

DISTRICT INSPECTIONS  
BLACKWATER 23

COURTHOUSE 3

WAVERLY 29

STONY CREEK 21

WAKEFIELD 4

HENRY 9

YALE 20

DISTRICT INSPECTIONS

Passed Inspections 78

Failed Inspections 31

BLACKWATE
R

26%

COURTHOUS
E

3%

WAVERLY
33%

STONY 
CREEK
24%

WAKEFIELD
4%

HENRY
10%

INSPECTIONS BY DISTRICT

Passed 
Inspections

72%

Failed 
Inspections

28%

Passed and Failed Inspections

Passed Inspections Failed Inspections

Consent Agenda - Page 10



Building department                                                                                    County of Sussex, Virginia   

MATT WESTHEIMER , mcp, cbo                                                                                                                    P. O. Box 1397 Sussex, Virginia 23884 

building official                                                                                                                                                      Fax (434) 246-8259 

(434) 246-4390  

 

 

Sussexcountyva.gov 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

DATE:  May 5, 2025 

 

TO:  Richard Douglas, County Administrator  

     

FROM: Matt Westheimer, Building Official        

 

SUBJECT: April 2025 - Monthly Report 

 

 

Please accept this as the April 2025 update for the Building Department.    

BUILDING ACTIVITY  

 April 2025 
 

Building 

Permits 

Electrical 

Permits 

Plumbing 

& 

Sprinkler 

Permits 

Mechanical 

Permits 

Field 

Inspections 

Misc. 

Fee 

Improvement 

Value 

Revenue 

Generated 

16 12 7 4 109 $0 $808,231.23 $9,151.59 

 

 April 2024 
 

Building 

Permits 

Electrical 

Permits 

Plumbing 

& 

Sprinkler 

Permits 

Mechanica

l Permits 

Field 

Inspections 

Misc. 

Fee 

Improvement 

Value 

Revenue 

Generated 

13 13 3 9 81 $0 $876,197.56 $7,496.03 

 

 July 2024 – June 2025 (Fiscal Totals) 

 

Building 

Permits 

Electrical 

Permits 

Plumbing 

& 

Sprinkler 

Permits 

Mechanical 

Permits 

Field 

Inspections 

Misc. 

Fee 

Improvement 

Value 

Revenue 

Generated 

105 110 36 60 893 $1504 $13,576,306.06 $138,305.25 

 

Inspections completed within 24 hours For April 100% 

Plans reviewed within 10 business days For April 100% 

 

Consent Agenda - Page 11



 

Sheriff’s Department 

 

        

 

 

March 20, 2025 

 
 

Monthly Reports  

   

Consent Agenda - Page 12



P. O.   
 
 
 
 
 

Sheriff E.L. Giles, Sr. 

Sussex County Sheriff’s Office 
 

“One Family, One Mission, One Goal” 
 

P.O. B 
 
 
 

P. O.  Box 1326 Sussex, Virginia 23884 
Telephone: 434-246-5000 

Fax: 434-246-5714 
Email: Egiles@susova.us 

 

 

 

Sussex County Sheriff’s Office Monthly Report 

   Month of April 2025 
 

PATROL 

         

 

 

COURTS 

 

   

 

Court: Judges: 

Circuit Court 2 

General District 4 

JDR Court 2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CALLS FOR SERVICE 

Type: Total: 

Sheriff 1,349 

Fire 103 

Rescue 255 

Animal Control 71 

Town of Wakefield 38 

Traffic 763 

TOTAL 2,579 

 

Court: 

Days of 

Court: 

Circuit Court 6 

General District 14 

JDR Court 3 

Consent Agenda - Page 13



CIVIL 

Fines and Forfeitures $54,188.37 

Sheriff’s Fees $1,078.00 

Courthouse Security $9,920.06 

JAIL 

During the month of May 2025, our average daily population was 29.8 inmates. The jail booked 

53 individuals in April 2025. 

The classification of these inmates as reported by the Commonwealth of Virginia’s LIDS 

computer system is as follows: 

Pre- Trial 36 inmates, having been confined a total of 463 days 

Sentenced Misdemeanant  10 inmates, having been confined a total of 93 days 

Sentenced Felons  12 inmates, having been confined a total of 211 days. 

Others  5 inmates, convicted but not sentenced, etc. 

Weekenders  11 inmates serving a misdemeanor sentence. 

Transports of inmates for various reasons are listed below: 

Court / Jail 9 

Medical 3 

Juvenile 0 

Road Crew 0 

TDO (Mental) 0 

TOTAL 12 

Type: Total: 

Subpoenas Served 289 

Jury Summoned 0 

Criminal Warrants 63 

DMV Notices 9 

Levies 0 

TDO 0 

ECO 1 

Other Civil 124 

Consent Agenda - Page 14



BOARD ACTION FORM 
 
Agenda Item:   Consent Agenda #2.05 
 
Subject: Regional Water Plan Participation Resolution 
 
Board Meeting Date:  May 15 2025 
 
============================================================================== 
 
Summary:  Attached for your consideration is a resolution accepting $14,558 in DEQ grant funds 
for the completion of a state-mandated regional water supply management plan, which will be 
managed by the Greensville County Water & Sewer Authority for the designated Chowan River 2 
Regional Planning Unit jurisdictions of Sussex County, Greensville County, and the City of 
Emporia.  Sussex County will be responsible for 1/3 of plan-related costs.  Resolutions from the 
board of each jurisdiction must be adopted by June 1, or funds will be forfeited.  You may recall 
that the board recently approved participation with Southampton County and Surry County in a 
regional water supply management plan that will target the needs of the eastern part of the 
county, but the county is still mandated to participate in the designated regional plan with 
Greensville County and Emporia.   . 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval 
 
Attachment:  Water supply management plan resolution 
 
============================================================================== 

 

ACTION:   
 
MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

              

 
Member Aye Nay    Member Aye Nay 
 
Baicy  ___ ___    Tolliver ___ ___  
 
Fly  ___ ___    Tyler  ___ ___ 
  
Futrell  ___ ___    White  ___ ___ 
 
Jones  ___ ___ 

Consent Agenda - Page 15



SUSSEX COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  

RESOLUTION #25-51 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Virginia Code Section 62.1-44.38:1, the State Water Control Board has 

established a comprehensive water supply planning process to accomplish the goals set forth in 

paragraph A of that Code Section;  

WHEREAS, pursuant to paragraph B of that Code Section, the State Water Control Board has 

created the Chowan River 2 Regional Planning Unit (“RPU”), the participating localities of 

which are Greensville County (“Greensville”), the City of Emporia (“Emporia”) and Sussex 

County (“Sussex”);  

WHEREAS, the RPU must submit a generally produced regional water supply plan (“Plan”) to 

the Department of Environmental Quality (“DEQ”) within five years from October 9, 2024;  

WHEREAS, the fact that each locality within the RPU must participate in development and 

submission of the Plan means that each such locality must bear its share of costs incurred in 

development and submission of the Plan, which costs are not funded by third party sources such 

as grants;   

WHEREAS, DEQ has awarded a planning grant to the RPU in the sum of $14,558.50 (“Initial 

Grant Funds”) to fund, in whole or in part, the cost of preparing and submitting a preliminary 

report, which preliminary report must be submitted by September 1, 2025;  

WHEREAS, the three participating localities acknowledge that any portion of the Initial Grant 

Funds not expended within 90 days from receipt must be returned to DEQ; 

WHEREAS, the governing bodies for Greensville and Emporia have, or will, adopt resolutions 

evidencing their commitment to participate in the preparation of the Plan, and to bear each such 

locality’s proportionate share of costs incurred, beyond costs funded by third party sources;  

WHEREAS, the governing bodies for Greensville and Emporia have, or will, adopt resolutions 

designating the Greensville County Water and Sewer Authority (“GCWSA”) to act as agent for, 

and in that capacity to apply for and execute on behalf of, the RPU application for grant funds, 

and after receipt of the funds to administer the funds in compliance with project mandates;  

WHEREAS, if any of the three participating localities does not adopt the support resolution by 

June 1, 2025, the Initial Grant Funds will be forfeited, but each locality will still be legally 

obligated to participate in the RPU and produce the Plan by the deadline (within five years from 

October 9, 2024).  

IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the Sussex County Board of Supervisors as follows:  

1. Contingent on concurring action by Greensville and Emporia, Greensville hereby accepts 

the role of lead locality in the RPU.  

 

Consent Agenda - Page 16



2. Contingent on concurring action by Greensville and Emporia, all duties and 

responsibilities of the RPU are hereby assigned to GCWSA, and GCWSA shall adopt a 

resolution evidencing its acceptance of those duties and responsibilities.  

 

3. GCWSA will accept the Initial Grant Funds on behalf of the RPU, and thereafter, all 

other funds awarded to the RPU from third party sources for preparation and submission 

of the Plan.   

 

4. The responsibilities of GCWSA will include retaining a qualified engineering firm to 

perform the initial tasks which must be completed by August 31, 2025, and assuring that 

grant funds must be expended by August 31, 2025. 

 

5. GCWSA will be required to assume responsibility for performing all tasks required in 

order to submit the Plan to the State Water Control Board by October 9, 2029.  

6. As lead agent for the RPU, GCWSA will be authorized to apply for, receive and 

administer the Initial Grant Funds.  

7. GCWSA will not be compensated by the three localities for services rendered to the 

RPU.  

 

8. Contingent on concurring action by Greensville and Emporia, Sussex will pay one-third 

(1/3) of all costs incurred, which costs are not funded by third party sources such as 

grants, in preparing and submitting the Plan within five years from October 9, 2024.  

 

9. Sussex acknowledges that GCWSA will not be liable for payment of any costs incurred 

in connection with the preparation and submission of the Plan.  

ADOPTED this15th day of May, 2025.  

_______________________________ 

Steve White, Chairman 

Sussex County Board of Supervisors 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________ 

Shilton R. Butts, Clerk 

Sussex County Board of Supervisors 

 

 

 

 

Consent Agenda - Page 17



BOARD ACTION FORM 
 
Agenda Item:   Consent Agenda #2.06 
 
Subject: OEMS Grant Termination Budget Resolution 
 
Board Meeting Date:  May 15 2025 
 
============================================================================== 
 
Summary:  Attached for your consideration is a budget resolution refunding the Virginia Office 
of Emergency Medical Services for RSAF grant #CRC03/06-21, in the amount of $55,913.02.  The 
Board of Supervisors previously approved a request from Sheriff Giles to cancel this grant related 
to emergency medical dispatch implementation (no funds were expended from this grant).  
Based on OEMS instructions, these funds have been refunded, and the county has no further 
obligations under this grant.  
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval of the attached budget resolution. 
 
Attachment:  OEMS budget resolution  
 
============================================================================== 

 

ACTION:  That the Board approves Budget Resolution #25-52. 
 
MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

              

 
Member Aye Nay    Member Aye Nay 
 
Baicy  ___ ___    Tolliver ___ ___  
 
Fly  ___ ___    Tyler  ___ ___ 
  
Futrell  ___ ___    White  ___ ___ 
 
Jones  ___ ___ 

Consent Agenda - Page 18



RESOLUTION #25-52 

FY25 BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Sussex County Board of Supervisors that the following budget 

amendment for Administration be and hereby is made for the period of July 1, 2024 through June 

30, 2025.  This resolution will appropriate funds received from the Virginia Office of Emergency 

Medical Services under RSAF grant # CRC03/06-21 to be refunded back to VOEMS.   

 

FUND # 100 

GENERAL FUND 

 

REVENUE 

 Fund 135 Local      $55,913.02 

 Total Revenues      $55,913.02 

 

EXPENDITURE 

 Fund 100 Administration     $55,913.02 

 Total Expenditures      $55,913.02 

 

Adopted this 15th day of May, 2025 

 

_______________________________ 

Steve White, Chairman 

Sussex County Board of Supervisors 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________ 

Shilton R. Butts, Clerk 

Sussex County Board of Supervisors 

 

. 

Consent Agenda - Page 19



BOARD ACTION FORM 
 
Agenda Item:   Consent Agenda #2.07 
 
Subject:  Literary Loan Financial/Legal Costs Budget Resolution (High School Roof/HVAC 

Project)) 
 
Board Meeting Date:  May 15 2025 
 
============================================================================== 
 
Summary:  Attached for your consideration is a budget resolution that provides for funding for 
finance and legal costs associated with a Literary Fund Loan through the Virginia Department of 
Education for roof and HVAC improvements at Sussex Central High School (as recently approved 
by the Board of Supervisors).  These funds are for services provided by Davenport and Sands 
Anderson (bond counsel), and could not be covered through the loan.   
 
Recommendation:  Staff requests approval  
 
Attachment:  Budget Resolution will be provided prior to meeting. 
 
============================================================================== 

 

ACTION:  That the Board approve to cover costs incurred and billed to the county, and no 
additional fees are anticipated for the project. 
 
MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

              

 
Member Aye Nay    Member Aye Nay 
 
Baicy  ___ ___    Tolliver ___ ___  
 
Fly  ___ ___    Tyler  ___ ___ 
  
Futrell  ___ ___    White  ___ ___ 
 
Jones  ___ ___ 

Consent Agenda - Page 20



BOARD ACTION FORM 
 
Agenda Item:   Recognition #3.01 
 
Subject: Recognition of Leah Brantley, Former DSS Chair, Advisory Board 
 
Board Meeting Date:  May 15 2025 
 
============================================================================== 
 
Summary:  Leah Brantley was the former Chair of the Department of Social Services.  She is no 
longer on the Board and will be recognized for her service. 
 
Recommendation:  No action needed. 
 
Attachment:  None 
 
============================================================================== 

 

ACTION:   
 
MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

              

 
Member Aye Nay    Member Aye Nay 
 
Baicy  ___ ___    Tolliver ___ ___  
 
Fly  ___ ___    Tyler  ___ ___ 
  
Futrell  ___ ___    White  ___ ___ 
 
Jones  ___ ___ 

Recognition/Presentations - Page 1



BOARD ACTION FORM 
 
Agenda Item:   Recognition #3.02 
 
Subject:  VDOT Six-Year Plan – George Bowman, VDOT Franklin Residency 
 
Board Meeting Date:  May 15 2025 
 
============================================================================== 
 
Summary:  George Bowman with the VDOT Franklin Residency will be in attendance to present 
the proposed VDOT six-year plan (secondary system construction program).  This information is 
attached for your review and consideration.  The board may wish to consider a public hearing at 
the June regular meeting prior to adoption.  
  
Recommendation:   
 
Attachment:  VDOT six-year plan documents  
 
============================================================================== 

 
ACTION:   
 
MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     
 
______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________            

 
Member Aye Nay    Member Aye Nay 
 
Baicy  ___ ___    Tolliver ___ ___  
 
Fly  ___ ___    Tyler  ___ ___ 
  
Futrell  ___ ___    White  ___ ___ 
 
Jones  ___ ___ 

Recognition/Presentations - Page 2



Secondary System

Sussex County

Fund FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 FY2031 Total

CTB Formula - Unpaved State $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TeleFee $21,520 $21,520 $21,520 $21,520 $21,520 $21,520 $129,120

Federal STP - Bond Match $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Federal STP $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

District Grant - Unpaved $78,505 $78,505 $78,505 $78,505 $83,057 $83,051 $480,128

Total $100,025 $100,025 $100,025 $100,025 $104,577 $104,571 $609,248

Construction Program

Estimated Allocations

Board Approval Date:

Residency Administrator

County Administrator

Date

Date

Recognition/Presentations - Page 3



SECONDARY SYSTEM CONSTRUCTION PROGRAM (in dollars)

District: Hampton Roads

County: Sussex County

Board Approval Date: 2026-27 through 2030-31

Route Road Name Estimated Cost Traffic Count

PPMS ID Project # Scope of Work

Accomplishment Description FHWA #

Type of Funds FROM Comments

Type of Project TO

Priority # Length Ad Date

0735

107435

RAAP CONTRACT

STP/S

9999.01

Tier 1 - Road work w RW 
(PE, RW, CN)

Courthouse Road

0735091752

Route 631 Gray Road

Route 631 Peters Bridge Road

0.7

Reconstruction & Drainage Improvements on Route 
735 - Sussex

PE

RW

CN

Total

$300,000

$225,000

$1,025,000

$1,550,000

4/8/2031

Reconstruction w/o Added Capacity

15004

0000

-26202

NOT APPLICABLE

9999.99

0000965442

Hampton Roads Secondary Allocations

PE

RW

CN

Total

$0

$0

$0

$0

____

8888

-3370

NOT APPLICABLE

9999.99

8888888P88

VARIOUS LOCATIONS IN COUNTY

FUTURE UNPAVED FUNDS: YR4-YR6

PE

RW

CN

Total

$0

$0

$0

$0

50

____

0609

119504

STATE FORCES/HIRED 
EQUIPMENT

9999.99

State forces/Hired equip 
PE CN Only

Butts Road

0609091770

Rowehampton Road-Route 697

Courthouse Road-Route 735

2.3

ROUTE 609 RECONSTRUCT & SURFACE TREAT 
NON-HARD SURFACE ROAD

PE

RW

CN

Total

$1,500

$0

$190,000

$191,500

4/21/2025

Reconstruction w/o Added Capacity

17004

Page 1 of 1 4/18/2025Date:

Recognition/Presentations - Page 4



BOARD ACTION FORM 
 
Agenda Item:   Recognition #3.03 
 
Subject:  Atlantic Strategic Minerals Update – Craig Hairfield 
 
Board Meeting Date:  May 15 2025 
 
============================================================================== 
 
Summary:  Craig Hairfield will be in attendance to provide an update on Atlantic Strategic 
Minerals.  
  
Recommendation:   
 
Attachment:     
 
============================================================================== 

 
ACTION:   
 
MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     
 
______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________            

 
Member Aye Nay    Member Aye Nay 
 
Baicy  ___ ___    Tolliver ___ ___  
 
Fly  ___ ___    Tyler  ___ ___ 
  
Futrell  ___ ___    White  ___ ___ 
 
Jones  ___ ___ 

Recognition/Presentations - Page 5



Recognition/Presentations - Page 6



BOARD ACTION FORM 
 
Agenda Item:   Presentation #3.04 
 
Subject: Nottoway River Blueway & Greenway Master Plan 
 
Board Meeting Date:  May 15 2025 
 
============================================================================== 
 
Summary: At its May 16, 2024 regular meeting, the Sussex County Board of Supervisors approved 
a proposal from the Timmons Group to develop a recreational master plan for the Nottoway 
River in Sussex County. A copy of the draft plan is included with your meeting packet, and Scott 
Wiley and Liz Fabis from the Timmons Group will present the report to the Board. 
 
Recommendation:  No action is needed at this time. 
 
Attachments: Sussex County Nottoway River Blue-Greenway Master Plan 
 
============================================================================== 

 

ACTION:      
 
MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

              

 
Member Aye Nay    Member Aye Nay 
 
Baicy  ___ ___    Tolliver ___ ___  
 
Fly  ___ ___    Tyler  ___ ___ 
  
Futrell  ___ ___    White  ___ ___ 
 
Jones  ___ ___ 

Recognition/Presentations - Page 7



NOTTOWAY RIVER BLUEWAY 
GREENWAY MASTER PLAN Recognition/Presentations - Page 8



N O T T O W A Y  R I V E R  B L U E W A Y  G R E E N W A Y  M A S T E R  P L A N
T I M M O N S  G R O U P  |  J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 4

P A G E  2

Table of Contents

Executive Summary

Introduction

Mapping and Analysis

Regional Recreation Assets

County Green Space

 Hydrology

Access Point Identi f icat ion and Priori t izat ion

Exist ing System

Variables to Consider When Planning for River Access

Exist ing Access Point Inventory

Access Point Analysis

Analysis Conclusions

Master Plan

Phase 1

Phase 2

Phase 1 Concept Plans

Character Imagery

Precedent Blueway and Greenway Projects 

Project Schedule 

Opinion of Probable Costs

Conclusion

Acknowledgements

... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .03

... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .04

... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .05

... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .06

... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .07

... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .08

... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .12

... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .13

... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .14

... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .15

... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .21

... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .28

... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .29

... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .30

... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .32

... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .34

... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .36

... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .37

... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .38

... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .39

... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .40

... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .41

Recognition/Presentations - Page 9



N O T T O W A Y  R I V E R  B L U E W A Y  G R E E N W A Y  M A S T E R  P L A N
T I M M O N S  G R O U P  |  J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 4

P A G E  3

Executive Summary

In 2024, Sussex County sought the support of Timmons Group to 

engage in a master planning process to study the Nottoway River’s 

suitability for recreational use and potential access locations associated 

with a new blue-greenway along the river within the County. The 

Nottoway River Blueway-Greenway Master Plan assesses river 

frontage, identifies recreational opportunities and constraints, and 

makes recommendations for a phased approach to implementation. 

This report identifies two river access points for prioritization to create 

an initial phase of the blue-greenway and provides conceptual site 

plans synthesizing best practices for small boat launches, tailored to 

preliminary findings about site constraints and the characteristics of the 

river.

Despite the Nottoway River’s vast drainage area, ecological and 

historic significance, and importance as a contributing waterway to the 

Albemarle-Pamlico Estuary of North Carolina, this watershed receives 

a fraction of the grant funding and legislative support offered to the 

Chesapeake Bay watershed just to the north, particularly within the 

Commonwealth of Virginia. It is the goal of this master plan to provide 

a vision for a Nottoway River Blueway-Greenway that illuminates the 

rich biodiversity and history of this region, promotes river recreation 

and tourism, and improves quality of life through river-based economic 

development of the Nottoway within Sussex County.  

The writers of this report acknowledge that the Nottoway River is 
the ancestral and unceded land of the Nottoway and Cheroenhaka 
Indian Tribes, who have been stewards and guardians of the river for 
generations. 

The Nottoway River within Sussex County is home to numerous 
significant indigenous sites. Before undertaking any river development 
it is essential to engage with the Nottoway Indian Tribe to confirm their 
support for this project and ensure projects do not disturb sacred lands.

Recognition/Presentations - Page 10



N O T T O W A Y  R I V E R  B L U E W A Y  G R E E N W A Y  M A S T E R  P L A N
T I M M O N S  G R O U P  |  J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 4

P A G E  4

discovered adjacent to the river. The Nottoway River is the ancestral 

land of the Nottoway Indian Tribe of Virginia and Cheroenhaka 

(Nottoway) Indian Tribe, who continue to live in the area. The Nottoway 

Community House and Interpretive Center in neighboring Southampton 

County educates visitors on the Tribe’s history in the region.

Sussex County, population 11,000, seeks to enhance the recreational 

and tourist opportunities offered by the Nottoway River to improve 

quality of life for residents, attract businesses, and provide economic 

development opportunities. The largest town, Waverly, population 

2,000, is approximately 10 miles from the Nottoway River. The town 

of Wakefield, population 700, is approximately 15 miles from the river. 

The town of Jarratt, which is located in both Sussex and Greenville 

Counties, is located 3 miles from the river and is home to 650 people.  

Stony Creek, a town of 200, is located at the confluence of Stony 

Creek, the Nottoway River, and Interstate 95. Stony Creek’s location 

invites further study as a potential node for river tourism. The entire 

town is located in a floodplain, and the buildings on its main street are 

largely vacant.  

Currently, Peters Bridge Boat Ramp is the only existing boat ramp 

in Sussex County, located near the downstream end of the county. 

Two other boat ramps, Purdy and Jarratt, are located at the upstream 

portion of the county, but are located on the opposite shore of the river 

in Greensville County. Informal river access exists at several Sussex 

County bridges, but can only accommodate non-motorized vessels. 

The distance between these access points makes them challenging 

for all but experienced paddlers anticipating a full day journey, or those 

with small motorized boats.  

0 20 4010 MILES [

LEGEND

Nottoway River Watershed

The Nottoway River meanders 130 miles from its headwaters in 

Nottoway County until it combines with Blackwater River to become 

the Chowan River in North Carolina. Fifty-five miles of the Nottoway 

River are located in Sussex County.  The Chowan Watershed drains 

13% of Virginia’s landmass, and the Nottoway is its primary tributary. 

Surrounded for the most part by swamps and lowlands, the Nottoway’s 

floodplain is broad and frequently flooded, sometimes unexpectedly 

rising due to storms that have happened far away. Due to the extensive 

wetlands adjacent to the river, the Nottoway’s banks are fairly 

undeveloped, and the primary land uses adjacent to the river include 

forestry, agriculture, and public lands. 

Beginning at Stony Creek until it meets the Chowan, the Nottoway is 

a Virginia Department of Conservation and Recreation designated 

State Scenic River. The Scenic Rivers Program’s intent is to identify, 

designate, and help protect rivers and streams that possess 

outstanding scenic, recreational, historic, and natural characteristics 

of statewide significance for future generations. This segment of the 

Nottoway is also eligible to be designated as a National Scenic River, 

and efforts are underway by conservation groups to protect adjacent 

lands from development through conservation easements as well as 

to advance the national designation. National scenic designation is 

expected to stimulate increased tourist interest in the river.

This segment of the river – which comprises approximately 30 miles of 

the Nottoway in Sussex County – runs free without any impoundments 

or dams, through largely undeveloped riparian buffers. The Nottoway’s 

bald cypress swamps are among the largest in the mid-Atlantic, and 

a variety of factors make the river an ecological hotspot. The river’s 

confluences with smaller creeks host high levels of ecological diversity, 

and natural areas such as the Chub Sandhill Natural Area Preserve 

are home to rare plant communities. The limits of tidal influence occur 

just downstream of Sussex County near the town of Courtland, making 

the river home to anadromous fish, which migrate between fresh and 

saltwater environments. These ecological qualities also make the river 

attractive to fishermen due to the variety of fish that can be caught.

This abundant natural habitat has been utilized by human communities 

for millennia, and several significant archeological sites have been 

Introduction

Nottoway River

Chowan River

Albemarle Sound

VIRGINA
NORTH CAROLINA

Sussex County

Right image: massive bald cypresses, such as this one at Peter’s Bridge Boat Ramp, 
grow along the Nottoway River.

Recognition/Presentations - Page 11



N O T T O W A Y  R I V E R  B L U E W A Y  G R E E N W A Y  M A S T E R  P L A N
T I M M O N S  G R O U P  |  J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 4

P A G E  5

Mapping and Analysis
• Regional Recreation Assets

• County Green Space

• Hydrology

Recognition/Presentations - Page 12



N O T T O W A Y  R I V E R  B L U E W A Y  G R E E N W A Y  M A S T E R  P L A N
T I M M O N S  G R O U P  |  J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 4

P A G E  6

!
!

!

!

!

!

SUFFOLK

VIRGINIA BEACH

NORFOLK

NEWPORT NEWS

RICHMOND

PETERSBURG

EMPORIA

WILLIAMSBURG

WAVERLY

WAKEFIELD

JARRATT

STONY CREEK

POWHATAN STATE PARK

KIPTOPEKE STATE PARK

CHIPPOKES STATE PARK

YORK RIVER STATE PARK

TWIN LAKES STATE PARK

POCAHONTAS STATE PARK

FALSE CAPE STATE PARK

MACHICOMOCO STATE PARK

OCCONEECHEE STATE PARK

FIRST LANDING STATE PARK

BEAR CREEK LAKE STATE PARK

MIDDLE PENINSULA STATE PARK

HIGH BRIDGE TRAIL STATE PARK SAILOR'S CREEK BATTLEFIELD STATE PARK

0 5 102.5 MILES [

Nottoway River

LEGEND

! Public Water Access

! ! ! Thematic Driving Tours

Public Lands

! Local Parks

!
Existing Boat Ramps 
(Nottoway River)

On-road Bike Trails

Off-Road BikeTrails

Hiking/OtherTrails

Regional 
Recreational 
Assets

This map displays Sussex in relation to nearby 

cities and recreational facilities such as state 

parks, trails, and public water accesses. 

Sussex County is located in relative proximity 

to populous urban areas such as Richmond (45 

minutes), Williamsburg (1 hour and 15 minutes), 

and Norfolk and Virginia Beach (1 hour and 30 

minutes). 

Various state parks, historic sites, driving tours, 

and on-road bike trails are located close to 

Sussex County. Beyond a Blueway-Greenway 

serving the local population of Sussex County, any 

river-based tourism development that emerges 

may also attract locals from these nearby cities as 

well as visiting tourists. 

This graphic demonstrates the relative scarcity 

of recreational assets in Sussex and its adjacent 

surroundings, underscoring the importance of 

studying opportunities to enhance recreational 

green space within the county. The Nottoway 

River has the potential to be an instrument of 

connected green spaces not only within the 

county, but extending beyond it, intersecting with 

other green spaces, boat ramps,and several on-

road bike trails. 

Recognition/Presentations - Page 13



N O T T O W A Y  R I V E R  B L U E W A Y  G R E E N W A Y  M A S T E R  P L A N
T I M M O N S  G R O U P  |  J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 4

P A G E  7

!

!
!

!

!

!

WAVERLY

WAKEFIELD

JARRATT

STONY CREEK
BIG WOODS

FLIPPO-GENTRY

PINEY GROVE

CHUB SANDHILL

DENDRON SWAMP

PINEY GROVE FLATWOODS

GARLAND GRAY

CHERRY ORCHARD BOG

JOSEPH PINES PRESERVE

PURDY BOAT RAMP

JARRATT BOAT RAMP

CARYS BRIDGE BOAT RAMP

PETERS BRIDGE BOAT RAMP

0 2 41 MILES

LEGEND

! Existing Boat Ramps

Conservation Easements

Planned DWR WMA

Public Lands

[

County Green 
Space

Sussex County possesses several Wildlife 

Management Areas (WMAs), State Forests, and 

State Natural Area Preserves (NAPs). WMAs 

and State Forests predominantly focus on the 

utilization of natural resources through hunting, 

fishing, or timber production. NAPs - of which 

there are four in Sussex County - protect rare 

or exemplary habitats and ecosystems, often 

with highly restricted public access. These 

conservation land types are largely undeveloped, 

lacking amenities such as campgrounds or visitor 

centers. Trails for hikers and bicyclists in Sussex 

County are limited to a few short trails or to forest 

access roads. Recreational opportunities are 

limited. 

Many of Sussex County’s conservation lands 

participate in efforts to restore the endangered 

Longleaf Pine, whose presence has dwindled to 

a fraction of its pre-European settlement range. 

Public land managers engage in prescribed burns 

to mimic the historic fire regime, which promotes 

habitat for endangered species such as the red-

cockaded woodpeaker. 

The map reveals a growing patchwork of 

green spaces that have been preserved from 

development by conservation easement. Though 

these lands do not always allow for public access, 

they contribute to the scenic, rural, and ecological 

qualities of the county. Of particular relevance to 

the Blue-Greenway Master Plan is a conservation 

easement that was transferred to the state in 2023 

to create a new WMA on the Nottoway River at 

its northernmost point in Sussex County that will 

provide another river public access point.

Recognition/Presentations - Page 14



N O T T O W A Y  R I V E R  B L U E W A Y  G R E E N W A Y  M A S T E R  P L A N
T I M M O N S  G R O U P  |  J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 4

P A G E  8

WAVERLY

WAKEFIELD

JARRATT

STONY CREEK

0 2 41 MILES [

LEGEND
Flood Zone

Rivers and Streams

Wetlands

Lake/Pond

X (0.2%)

AE, 1%; Floodway

A,  1%

AE,  1%

Due to the large surface area that the Nottoway 

River drains, the river floods often, and when 

it does, flooded areas often stay inundated for 

days or weeks. The relatively flat topography near 

the river contains numerous wetlands, tributary 

streams, and ponds. 

Much of the floodplain is designated as 100-year 

floodplain by FEMA’s National Flood Insurance 

Program (NFIP). However, riverbank flooding that 

will impact potential access points begins well 

before 1% flood peak discharges are reached. 

Upstream of Stony Creek, the 100-year floodplain 

is also designated as floodway. Development 

within floodways requires obtaining a no-rise 

certificate to demonstrate the project will not 

increase the river’s flood risk.

The presence of wetlands can complicate 

developing public access points. Wetland 

disturbances should be avoided whenever 

possible for ecological, regulatory and permitting, 

and cost reasons. However, some level of impact 

and mitigation may be unavoidable. 

The Nottoway River’s ecological diversity and 

status as a hotspot for protected, endangered, and 

threatened species may complicate construction 

efforts if these species are found on a prospective 

site. Permitting and compensatory actions for 

wetland disturbance add to project costs and 

timelines.  

This report utilized publicly available GIS data 

to access topography, flood risk, and potential 

wetland presence. Official topographic surveys, 

engineering studies, biological surveys, and 

wetland delineations may be required in the 

permitting process. 

Hydrology

Recognition/Presentations - Page 15



N O T T O W A Y  R I V E R  B L U E W A Y  G R E E N W A Y  M A S T E R  P L A N
T I M M O N S  G R O U P  |  J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 4

P A G E  9

! !
PURDY BOAT RAMP

JARRATT BOAT RAMP

HUSKE

BL
UE

 S
TA

R

HUNT

SUSSEX

IN
TE

RS
TA

TE
 9

5

LI
TT

LE
 M

IL
L

REED

CO
NC

O
RD

 S
AP

PO
NY

PALESTINE

LEE

DI
LL

AR
D

BR
IG

G
S

G
EE FARM

STEWART

W
O

O
D

YA
R

D

BELL

HENDERSON

LOCO
 SCHOO

L

COLLEGE

BOOTH

GREEN CHURCH

ROCKY BRANCH

O
W

EN

WYATT

PARHAM

COMANS WELL

SANDY FIELD

FLOWERS

SH
AN

D
S

AL
LE

N

OSB
ORNE

DOVE

DAVIS

M
UR

RELL

WALKERS M
ILL

SPIERS

W
IN

FI
EL

D

HALIFAX

HARDAWAY

B
A

R
N

ES

HI
LL

S

PO
A

R
C

H

REDBANK

COMANS WELL

PARHAM

W
ALKERS M

ILL

0 1 20.5 MILES [

LEGEND
Flood Zone

Rivers and Streams

Wetlands

Lake/Pond

X (0.2%)

AE, 1%; Floodway

A,  1%

AE,  1%

! Existing Boat Ramps

Planned DWR WMA

Public Lands

Inset Map 1

MATCHLINE MAP 2

MATCHLINE MAP 1

Recognition/Presentations - Page 16



N O T T O W A Y  R I V E R  B L U E W A Y  G R E E N W A Y  M A S T E R  P L A N
T I M M O N S  G R O U P  |  J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 4

P A G E  1 0

SUSSEX

O
LD

 F
O

RT
Y

BL
UE

 S
TA

R

C
O

U
R

TH
O

U
SE

CABIN STICK

JERUSALEM PLANK

ROBINSON

TY
U

S

CABIN POINT

EM
ERALD

LEE

DI
LL

AR
DG

EE FARM

HUSKE

SETZER

PALESTINE

N
EW

VI
LL

E
HALIFAX

NEBLETT MILL

SLA
G

LE

BETHEL CHUR
CH

RA
IL

RO
AD

 B
ED

AN
DE

RS
ON

LONG
EVITY

G
A

LLEY

W
O

O
D

YA
R

D

BOOTH

CO
M

AN
S 

W
EL

L

TAYLOR

C
ER

N
EY

W
O

O
D

COOL SPRING

BOOKER

BR
IG

G
S

PRINCETON

REED

ZI
ON

M
UR

RELL

AL
LE

N

C
H

EV
Y

VIEW

ST JOHN CHURCH

HARDAWAY

O
PT

IM
IS

T

REDBANK

CABIN POINT

HALIFAX

0 1 20.5 MILES [

LEGEND
Flood Zone

Rivers and Streams

Wetlands

Lake/Pond

X (0.2%)

AE, 1%; Floodway

A,  1%

AE,  1%

! Existing Boat Ramps

Planned DWR WMA

Public Lands

Inset Map 2

MATCHLINE MAP 2

MATCHLINE MAP 3

MATCHLINE MAP 2

MATCHLINE MAP 1

Recognition/Presentations - Page 17



N O T T O W A Y  R I V E R  B L U E W A Y  G R E E N W A Y  M A S T E R  P L A N
T I M M O N S  G R O U P  |  J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 4

P A G E  1 1

!

BIG WOODS

FLIPPO-GENTRY

CHUB SANDHILL

GARLAND GRAY

PINEY GROVE

PETERS BRIDGE BOAT RAMP

SUSSEX

CO
UR

TH
OU

SE

O
LD

 F
O

RT
Y

GILLIAM

STOKES

POOLE

PETERS BRIDGE

PINE TREE

JE
RU

SA
LE

M
 P

LA
NK

BEAVER DAM

U
N

IO
N

 H
IL

L

TY
US

EM
ERALD

COMANS WELL

ROBINSON

SANDY HILL

UNION CAMP

LONG
EVITY

COX

COOL SPRING

AN
DE

RS
ON

HICKORY HILL

LU
M

B
ER

TO
N

TURKEY PEN

DABNEY

BAILEY

BARRETT CHURCH

TO
W

ER
 H

IL
L

PRINCETON

BETHEL CHURCH

DILLARD

O
PT

IM
IS

T

MAGEE

COMANS WELL

0 1 20.5 MILES [

LEGEND
Flood Zone

Rivers and Streams

Wetlands

Lake/Pond

X (0.2%)

AE, 1%; Floodway

A,  1%

AE,  1%

! Existing Boat Ramps

Planned DWR WMA

Public Lands

Inset Map 3

MATCHLINE MAP 2

MATCHLINE MAP 3

Recognition/Presentations - Page 18



N O T T O W A Y  R I V E R  B L U E W A Y  G R E E N W A Y  M A S T E R  P L A N
T I M M O N S  G R O U P  |  J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 4

P A G E  1 2

Access Point Identification 
and Prioritization

• Exist ing System

• Variables to Consider When Planning For River Access

• Exist ing Access Point Inventory

• Access Point Analysis

• Analysis Conclusions

Recognition/Presentations - Page 19



N O T T O W A Y  R I V E R  B L U E W A Y  G R E E N W A Y  M A S T E R  P L A N
T I M M O N S  G R O U P  |  J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 4

P A G E  1 3

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

11 MILES

9.4 MILES

8.8 MILES

8.1 MILES

7.7 MILES

4.8 MILES

4.7 MILES

4.2 MILES

3.7 MILES

3.5 MILES

JARRATT

STONY CREEK

OLD FORTY ROAD

COURTHOUSE ROAD

RAILROAD BED ROAD

GREEN CHURCH ROAD

SUSSEX ROAD (EAST)
SUSSEX ROAD (WEST)

BIG WOODS
FLIPPO-GENTRY

CHUB SANDHILL

PINEY GROVE

GARLAND GRAY

PINEY GROVE FLATWOODS

SUSSEX

B
L
U

E
 S

T
A

R

G
RAY

C
O

U
R

T
H

O
U

S
E

IN
T

E
R

S
T
A

T
E

 9
5

BELL

O
W

E
N

HUSKE

OLD FORTY

JE
R

U
S
A
LE

M
 P

LA
N

K

STOKES

HUNT

BUTTS

CABIN POINT

GILLIAM

HENRY

L
IT

T
L
E

 M
IL

L

PETERS BRIDGE

OAKDALE

C
A

B
IN

 S
T
IC

K

KIENTZ

REED

R
O

B
IN

S
O

N

POOLE

E
M

E
R

A
L
D

T
Y

U
S

PINE TREE

I-
9

5

NEBLETT MILL

L
O

C
O

 S
C

H
O

O
L

PALESTINE

D
IL

LA
R

D

N
E

W
V

IL
L
E

U
N

IO
N

 H
IL

L

B
R

IG
G

S

STEWART

SETZER

B
E

A
V
E

R
 D

A
M

H
A

L
IF

A
X

S
L
A

G
L
E

COMANS W
ELL

W
O

O
D

Y
A

R
D

U
N

IO
N

 C
A

M
P

H
EN

D
E
R
S
O
N

HILDA

AN
D
E
R
S
O

N

COLLEGE

GRIGG

Z
IO

N

G
A

L
L

E
Y

G
R

E
E
N

 C
H

U
R

C
H

T
O

W
E

R
 H

IL
L

HARMONY

COOL SPRING

W
YATT

CHAMPION

C
E

R
N

E
Y

W
O

O
D B

R
O

W
N

PARHAM

BOOKER

L
U

M
B

E
R

T
O

N

S
A

N
D

Y
 F

IE
LD

C
O

P
P

A
H

A
U

N
K

DABNEY

W
A

L
K

E
R

S
 M

IL
L

COMANS WELL

PURDY BOAT RAMP JARRATT BOAT RAMP

PETERS BRIDGE BOAT RAMP

0 2 41 MILES

LEGEND

! Existing Boat Ramps

! Potential Existing Informal Access Points

Conservation Easements

Planned DWR WMA

Public Lands

[

ROUTE 609 
PUT-IN POINT

CAREY’S BRIDGE 
BOAT RAMP

Existing System
This map displays existing formal and informal river access 
points and the distance in river miles between them. 
Though these access points are displayed on an undated 
map on the Virginia Department of Wildlife Resources 
(VDWR) website as “canoe access,” stakeholder interviews 
revealed that these access points are undeveloped and are 
frequently challenging to enter. 

Three VDWR boat ramps service the Nottoway in Sussex 
County, however, the first two (Purdy and Jarratt) are 
located across the river in adjacent Greensville County. 
These boat ramps can accommodate trailered boats and 
lack any additional amenities such as bathrooms. 

The following pages inventory the conditions at 
the informal access points. 

START OF DCR STATE 
SCENIC RIVER
 DESIGNATION

Recognition/Presentations - Page 20



N O T T O W A Y  R I V E R  B L U E W A Y  G R E E N W A Y  M A S T E R  P L A N
T I M M O N S  G R O U P  |  J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 4

P A G E  1 4

ESTIMATED PADDLE TIME

An average person in a non-motorized watercraft 

can paddle approximately 2 miles per hour.  This 

speed can vary based on currents, water levels, 

direction of travel (upstream or downstream), and 

ability level.

Paddling speed directly influences the River 

Interconnectivity ranking. This figure was used to 

estimate travel times between two points and can 

be found on each access point analysis page. 

Flood Risk

Flood Risk was evaluated based on the Federal Emergency Management Agency Flood Insurance 

Rate Maps and the likely elevation of potential site infrastructure such as parking lots relative to the 

river. “High” risk was assigned to sites at lower elevations relative to the river or those located within the 

100-year floodplain or floodway. Frequent flooding increases the need for resilient materials and more 

frequent maintenance.

River
Interconnectivity

Interconnectivity was evaluated for all potential access points in terms of their relative distance from 

other existing - or proposed - access points. This ranking was derived by assessing each access point’s 

potential number of paddle trips that could be created in conjunction with all other access points. High 

interconnectivity creates more opportunity for one-way, downstream trips, which are preferred by river 

paddlers. Though the master plan anticipates small motorcraft may also utilize future access points, they 

are not as constrained by distance or travel direction, and thus are not considered within this metric. 

Land Ownership
Land Ownership was evaluated based on whether the access point resides on publicly or privately 

owned land. Publicly owned land is preferred. Lands located within easements such as bridge access 

easements are also considered publicly owned lands for the purposes of this study. 

Cost of 
Development

Cost of Development was evaluated based on site variables such as topography, potential driveway 

distance, and wetland disturbance potential. Sites with a relatively “low” Cost of Development may 

require less engineering of the site or lack regulatory hurdles, and are preferred over sites with a 

relatively “high” Cost of Development. 

Proximity

Values of “Good,” “Fair,” and “Poor” have been assigned to sites based on their respective distance to 

nearby towns. Access points closer to population centers are opportunities that may confer health and 

quality of life improvements for residents. Amenities such as dining, fuel, and emergency services foster 

a positive river tourism or recreation experience, and as river usage increases, may spur the economic 

development of additional amenities.

Variables to Consider When Planning For River Access
This report evaluated areas where existing public 

roads cross the Nottoway as potential river access 

sites. Limiting the roadway length required to reach 

the river reduces construction impact and costs. 

In addition, some transportation grants for VDOT 

bridge maintenance can be utilized to fund public 

river access projects. In many cases, these areas 

are already being informally used for access. 

The five variables on the right are site characteristics 

to consider when developing river access points. 

The following pages inventory the existing conditions 

at the potential access sites. In the final pages of 

this section, the sites are compared across these 

five variables within a prioritization matrix to identify 

which two access points should be developed as 

Phase One of the Nottoway River Blueway.

Recognition/Presentations - Page 21



N O T T O W A Y  R I V E R  B L U E W A Y  G R E E N W A Y  M A S T E R  P L A N
T I M M O N S  G R O U P  |  J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 4

P A G E  1 5

GREEN CHURCH 
ROAD

Existing Access 
Point Inventory

PADDLE TIME

Next potential access point: 
4 hours downstream
Next existing access point: 
18 hours downstream

OBSERVATIONS

Stakeholder interviews indicated that boats 

can be launched from this area with landowner 

permission, but the river banks are very slick and 

difficult to traverse in their current unimproved 

state. 

This access point is convenient as a take-out 

point for paddlers originating from the existing 

Jarratt Boat Ramp. Downstream of this location, 

the Nottoway meanders for miles in the vicinity of 

busy Interstate 95 before reaching Stony Creek, 

limiting the utility of this access point as a starting 

point on a river journey. 

This access point is located within the floodway, 

which will require additional engineering study to 

develop However, this site appears to be slightly 

higher relative to the river and may have fewer 

wetlands present.

On the south side of the bridge, road shoulders are narrow 
and the banks are forested.

View upstream from bridge. On the northwest side of the bridge, a farm field and dirt 
access road gently slope from the roadway toward the river. 

!

!
!

! !
!

!
!!

!

!

68

69

6
7

70

71

6
6

7
2

7
3

74

75

76

7
7

7
8

7
9

8
0

81

82

83
6
5

84

85

8
6

82

7
6

79

7
9

72

7
2

83

8
1

7
8

82

8
4

6
7

78

81

72

7
1

81

81

81

8
0

79

8
1

77

7
4

8
2

80

8
2

80

79

81

7
8

8
1

80

8
2

8
1

79

7
2

75

80

81

6
6

8
1

82

81

8
1

74

68

7
5

7
0

81

79

79

85

7
8

7
5

84

7
1

81

75

8
0

6
9

80 74

79

80

8
0

82

7
7

81

79 8
1

7
3

8
4

123-A-1

104-A-14

105-A-3

123-A-2

Source: Esri, Maxar, Earthstar Geographics, and the GIS User Community

LEGEND

TAX PARCELS

WETLANDS

1' CONTOURS

0 100 20050 FEET [

DID YOU KNOW? 

Fair

High (Floodway)

Private

Moderate

Good

8.1 MILES TO NEXT 
POTENTIAL ACCESS POINT

Just downstream of this site, where the railroad bridge crosses the river, the Battle of White 
Bridge took place here on May 5, 1864. Union troops were successful in burning the railroad 
bridge despite Confederate attempts to defend it. Fort Nottoway still stands about a quarter mile 
north of the river.

GREEN CHURCH 
ROAD

4.8 MILES FROM JARRATT 
BOAT RAMP

Existing Access 
Point Inventory

Recognition/Presentations - Page 22



N O T T O W A Y  R I V E R  B L U E W A Y  G R E E N W A Y  M A S T E R  P L A N
T I M M O N S  G R O U P  |  J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 4

P A G E  1 6

DID YOU KNOW? 

XX MILES TO NEXT 
POTENTIAL ACCESS POINT

Existing Access 
Point Inventory

OBSERVATIONS

This access point has several appealing qualities, 

foremost being its proximity to Stony Creek and 

the potential to foster river tourism within the town. 

To the south of Route 40 on Gee Farm Road is an 

existing VDOT Park & Ride lot that perhaps could 

be coordinated as parking for blueway users or a 

river outfitter shuttle waiting area. 

Despite this site’s location within the floodway, the 

elevation at which a parking lot could be situated 

on this site is higher than other potential access 

points analyzed. Additional engineering study 

would be required to ascertain the site’s flood risk. 

Route 40 has extended guardrails on both sides 

and parking is currently prohibited on the shoulder 

and bridges, unlike many of the access point 

sites located on quiet rural roads, limiting current 

access to only by landowner approval.Future 

landowner coordination would be needed to 

negotiate public access at this site.

View downstream from bridge.View toward east, with a private access road leading toward 
the river.

Though Route 40’s road shoulders are wide, parking on the 
bridge is prohibited. Due to steep drop offs to the east of the 
bridge, guardrails extend along the roadside for an extended 
distance. 

!

!
!

! !
!

!
!!

!

!

6463 62

6160

59
58

55 5756

54

53

65

66

69

68

67

52

70

71
72

73

74

61
55

63

64

7
1

66

6
1

61

65

62

5
9

5
9

71

6
1

65

64

56

6
5

6
5

6
5

66

6
2

6
4

64

58

6
3

64

6
3

65

65

62

6
4

72

66

6
1

6
5

64

6
1

60

65

6
4

69

53

6
3

72

63

6
6

71

6
3

6
4 58

71

65

66

6
4

64

6
5

69

64

65

65

62

66

65

66

64

59

64

65

62

6
5

5
5

63

6
3

62

6
4

65

63

6
0

6
5

68

6
2

65

74

65

5
4

64
57

5
6

63

5
8

5
7

64

5
5

62

61

69

5
3

64

6
2

65

72

7
0

6
5

73

54

6
5

67

6
5

6
4

64

6
2

70

6
3

68

62

61

6
0

5
8

6
5

61

64

6
4

6
4

64

61

5
6

57

66

63

65

59

6
5

64

67-A-24

87-A-1
67-A-28

87-A-1

67-A-23

SUSSEX

Source: Esri, Maxar, Earthstar Geographics, and the GIS User Community

LEGEND

TAX PARCELS

WETLANDS

1' CONTOURS

0 100 20050 FEET [

The Nottoway State Scenic River designation currently extends from this point on Route 40 until 
its confluence with the Blackwater and Meherrin Rivers.

Fair

High (Floodway)

Private

Moderate

Good

PADDLE TIME
Next potential access point: 
4 hours downstream
Next existing access point: 
14 hours downstream

8.1 MILES FROM NEXT 
POTENTIAL ACCESS POINT

7.7 MILES TO NEXT 
POTENTIAL ACCESS POINT

SUSSEX ROAD 
(RT. 40) WEST

Recognition/Presentations - Page 23



N O T T O W A Y  R I V E R  B L U E W A Y  G R E E N W A Y  M A S T E R  P L A N
T I M M O N S  G R O U P  |  J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 4

DID YOU KNOW? 

P A G E  1 7

The view looking upstream from the Railroad Bed Road 
Bridge.

Visitors currently use road shoulders for parking.A moderately steep informal path on the northeast side of the 
river leads to a small sandbar popular for river access.

OBSERVATIONS 

A highly used “informal” access points, a 

moderately sloping trail leads from the northeast 

of the bridge down to a sandbar. Vehicles park on 

the shoulders near the bridge, accommodating 

several cars. Several families were observed 

swimming and fossil hunting. Stakeholders 

reported that the river segment downstream is 

one of the best in the county for paddlers - with 

a good river depth, an easy to portage sandy 

riverbed, and wide enough to navigate fallen 

trees. 

Note: While this report was being prepared in 

Summer-Fall 2024, and after site analysis had 

concluded, a land conservation entity purchased 

the parcel on the opposite bank of the Nottoway 

River across from the analyzed site on this page. 

The new owner intends to place a conservation 

easement and allow for public river access. 

Developing a boat launch on the newly conserved 

site became a priority for the master plan. 

Railroad Bed Road is named after the West Hope Branch of the Surry, Sussex & Southhampton 
Railroad, a narrow-gage railroad used for logging, that once ran on or beside this road. 

!

!
!

! !
!

!
!!

!

!

52

53

51

54

44

4
3

45

46
47

4
8

49

50

55

56

57

58

59

6
0

6
1

54

54

56

56

54

525
6

54

50

5
3

54

56

4
7

46

5
5

56

54

54

4
7

56

55

54

5
2

5
6

5
3

55

55

5
7

53

55

58

4
5

5
3

54

52
53

58

52

5
155

52

5
3

55

52

54

5
6

55

4
8

53

52

55

51

5
5

56

5
4

55

56

55

6
0

5
5

53

57

54

55

5
6

54

52
5
4

51

57

5
4

54

5
5

5
1

51

44

5
6

54

5
3

54

5
4

49
46

56

51

55

54

5
4

5
3

5
6

57

35-A-22

36-A-31

36-A-8

51-A-1A

36-1-29

RAILROAD BED

Source: Esri, Maxar, Earthstar Geographics, and the GIS User Community

LEGEND

TAX PARCELS

WETLANDS

1' CONTOURS

0 100 20050 FEET [

RAILROAD BED 
ROAD

PADDLE TIME

Next potential access point: 
2.5 hours downstream
Next existing access point: 
10.5 hours downstream

7.7 MILES FROM NEXT 
POTENTIAL ACCESS POINT

4.7 MILES TO NEXT 
POTENTIAL ACCESS POINT

INITIALLY STUDIED SITE / 
CURRENT INFORMAL ACCESS

PARCEL ACQUIRED BY 
CONSERVATION GROUP

AREA SELECTED FOR 
PUBLIC ACCESS POINT

Good

Moderate

Conservation 
Easement Planned

Low 

Fair

Existing Access 
Point Inventory

Recognition/Presentations - Page 24



N O T T O W A Y  R I V E R  B L U E W A Y  G R E E N W A Y  M A S T E R  P L A N
T I M M O N S  G R O U P  |  J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 4

P A G E  1 8

In September 1865, the Confederates herded 2,500 cattle south across the Nottoway River at this 
site during the “Beefsteak Raid” against the Union.

DID YOU KNOW? 

COURTHOUSE
ROAD

Existing Access 
Point Inventory

An old VDOT right of way on the northwest side of the river 
overlaps with a utility easement.

An informal and extremely steep trail to the river.Limited shoulder parking appears to exist to the southeast of 
the river.

!

!
!

! !
!

!
!!

!

!
49

48 47

46

4
5

44

50

43

51
42

52

41

53

40

39
38

54

55

5
6

5
7

58

59

60

53

50

48

49

53

4
4

5
3

49

44

47

6
0

5
3

50

48

49

49

5
6

5
4

5
0

4
9

40

5
9

5
2

48

41

4
7

6
0

60
5
7

39

5
6

59

4
7

49

47

5
8

5
1

5
0

48

45

4
9

48
5
4

47

4
8

51

55

50

43

5
7

48

4746

50

42
5
1

55

4
7

4
7

4
5

50

5
4

48

5
5

38-A-15

52-1-2

52-1-1

52-A-9

38-A-14

52-1-3

CO
UR

TH
OU

SE

Source: Esri, Maxar, Earthstar Geographics, and the GIS User Community

LEGEND

TAX PARCELS

WETLANDS

1' CONTOURS

0 100 20050 FEET [

4.7 MILES FROM NEXT 
POTENTIAL ACCESS POINT

8.8 MILES TO NEXT 
POTENTIAL ACCESS POINT

Good

Moderate

Utility 
Easement

Low 

Fair

OBSERVATIONS

A typical takeout point for paddlers starting at 

Railroad Bed Road, this bridge features two 

informal existing access points. To the southeast 

of the bridge, a steep, near vertical trail descends 

to the river, aided sometimes by a climbing rope. 

To the northwest, a utility easement provides 

river access. Though vehicle access to the river 

was once possible via an access road along the 

utility easement, flooding has made this roadway 

impassible. 

A portion of the northwest parcel may contain a 

VDOT right of way easement that follows a former 

bridge alignment. This may have been recorded 

as a gift of open space when transferred to the 

County. The County is investigating this parcel to 

determine the status of this easement. 

From Courthouse Road to Route 40, the river 

narrows and tends to be obstructed by fallen 

trees, making this location a better take-out than 

put-in spot. 

In September 1865, the Confederates herded 2,500 cattle south across the Nottoway River at this 
site during the “Beefsteak Raid” against the Union.

DID YOU KNOW? 
PADDLE TIME

Next potential access point: 
4 hours downstream
Next existing access point: 
8 hours downstream

Recognition/Presentations - Page 25



N O T T O W A Y  R I V E R  B L U E W A Y  G R E E N W A Y  M A S T E R  P L A N
T I M M O N S  G R O U P  |  J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 4

P A G E  1 9

DID YOU KNOW? 

The Blackwater, Nottoway, and Meherrin Rivers Atlas notes a large deposit of fossil shells 
downstream of this location. One of the most common finds on the Nottoway is the official state 
fossil, Chesapecten jeffersonius, the shell of a giant scallop that can reach up to 11 inches wide. 

OBSERVATIONS

Existing Access 
Point Inventory

OBSERVATIONS

Route 40 in this location is raised high above 

the surrounding extensive wetlands, making this 

location more challenging for development. The 

elevations here relative to the river are lower than 

many of the other access points studied. However, 

this access point is located closest to the Town of 

Waverly, approximately 10-15 minutes east.

As with the Route 40 site further west, the road 

shoulders here are wide enough for parking, but 

parking is not permitted on the bridge. 

The river upstream from this location is narrow 

and tends to be obstructed by fallen trees, limiting 

the utility of developing access here. Downstream, 

however, Peters Bridge Boat Ramp is within a 

half-day’s paddle.

To the northeast of the bridge, a private access 

road leads towards the river. Its condition is 

unknown. 

View toward west shows a private access road leading toward 
river through a very swampy area.

The bridge’s shoulders are wide enough for vehicles; however, 
parking is prohibited.

View towards east shows steep banks protected by guardrails 
on both sides with limited access to the river.

Excellent

High

Private

High 

Fair

!

!
!

! !
!

!
!!

!

!

35

3
4

33

32

31

3
0

2
9

36

37

38

39
40 41

42

43

44

45

46

37

35

41

3
634

36

37

36

36

38

3534

37

3
1

35

35

38

3
8

35

3
5

3
1

36

43

33

37

36
38

3
4

40

38

35

36

36

34

3
6

35

38

3
6

34

33

36

33

34

3
4

3
5

35

36

36

3
6

3
6

37

36

3
4

3
5

3
4

39

37

35

45

33

3
6

3
6

36

3
5

36

36

37

36

36

3
8

3
6

36

3
8

36

3
5

36

42

39

44

36

37

36

3
7

37

35

36

34
36

3
7

34

35

36

36

36

3
8

3
5

34

32

3
6

3
6

3
6

3
3

36

36

37

34

37

72-A-1

73-A-3

73-A-3

91-A-13

SUSSEX

Source: Esri, Maxar, Earthstar Geographics, and the GIS User Community

LEGEND

TAX PARCELS

WETLANDS

1' CONTOURS

0 100 20050 FEET [

SUSSEX ROAD 
(RT. 40) EAST

8.8 MILES FROM NEXT 
POTENTIAL ACCESS POINT

3.7 MILES TO NEXT 
POTENTIAL ACCESS POINT

PADDLE TIME

Next potential access point: 
2 hours downstream
Next existing access point: 
4 hours downstream

Recognition/Presentations - Page 26



N O T T O W A Y  R I V E R  B L U E W A Y  G R E E N W A Y  M A S T E R  P L A N
T I M M O N S  G R O U P  |  J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 4

P A G E  2 0

DID YOU KNOW? 

OBSERVATIONS

Existing Access 
Point Inventory

OBSERVATIONS

Old Forty Road is elevated above the surrounding 

wetlands, but the road shoulders are wide enough 

to allow for parking.  The river bank here is slick 

and steep. The grade change between the road 

and adjacent land is significant, and the lowlands 

here have a lower elevation relative to the river 

than other sites, indicating this area floods more 

frequently.

On the upstream side of the bridge, a power line 

easement cuts through the woods on both banks 

of the river along what appears to be a former 

alignment of Old Forty Road. This easement 

should receive future study for its potential for 

public access along that easement.

View looking south toward bridge showing the power line 
easement.

View upstream from the bridge.The road shoulder to the south of the bridge accommodates 
informal parking. 

!

!
!

! !
!

!
!!

!

!
4
0

4
1

4
2

4
3

4
4

45

4
6

47

4
8

49

5
0

5
1

52

5
3

5
4

5
5

5
6

57

5
8

59

6
0

61

6
2

63

6
4

6
5

6
6

6
7

68

69

70

7
1

7
2

7
3

7
4

7
5

7
6

7
7

78

79
80

81

8
2

83

8
4

8
5

8
6

8
7

37

39

3
5

3
6

89

3
8

90

33

8
8

3
2

3
02
9

3
1

2
8

2
7

2
6

2
5

3
4

3
7

32

3
3

31

33

29

3
3

30

3
2

32

3
9

3
9

3
6

32

3
2

3
4

3
4 36

34

3
9

2
7

3
2

31

3
2

33

3
4

3
7

3
2

33

3
2

31

3
2 32

3
8

33

32

3
2

28

3
5

32 35

31

33

32

88

30

38

2
9

112-A-1
111-A-33

112-A-1

111-A-33A

O
LD

 F
O

RT
Y

Source: Esri, Maxar, Earthstar Geographics, and the GIS User Community

LEGEND

TAX PARCELS

WETLANDS

1' CONTOURS

0 100 20050 FEET [

Downstream of this point, bald cypresses and the distinctive “knees” of their root system become 
a prevalent feature on the Nottoway River. 

Good

High

Private

High

Fair

3.7 MILES FROM NEXT 
POTENTIAL ACCESS POINT

3.5 MILES TO PETER’S 
BRIDGE BOAT RAMP

OLD FORTY 
ROAD

PADDLE TIME

Next existing access point: 
2 hours downstream

Recognition/Presentations - Page 27



N O T T O W A Y  R I V E R  B L U E W A Y  G R E E N W A Y  M A S T E R  P L A N
T I M M O N S  G R O U P  |  J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 4

P A G E  2 1

Half Day Trip

Full Day Trip

Multi-Day Trip

River
Interconnectivity

3-8 miles

8-16 miles

16+ miles

This rubric assesses the interconnectivity between existing and proposed access points by river distance. 

An average paddle speed is approximately 2 miles per hour. In another river’s blueway master plan process 

found that river users prefer paddling trips of 2-3 hours (4-6 miles). 

Mile 
Marker Access Point Name

Pu
rd

y 
B

oa
t 

R
am

p

Ja
rr

at
t B

oa
t 

R
am

p

G
re

e
n

 C
h
u
rc

h
 

R
o
a
d

S
u
s
s
e
x
 R

o
a
d
 /

 

R
t.
 4

0
 (

W
e
s
t)

R
a
ilr

o
a
d

 B
e
d

 

R
o
a
d

C
o
u
rt

h
o
u
s
e

 

R
o
a
d

S
u
s
s
e
x
 R

o
a
d
 /

 

R
t.
 4

0
 (

E
a
s
t)

O
ld

 F
o
rt

y
 R

o
a
d

Pe
te

rs
 B

rid
ge

 
B

oa
t R

am
p

0 Purdy Boat Ramp 4.2 9 17.1 24.8 29.5 38.3 42 45.5

4.2 Jarratt Boat Ramp 4.2 4.8 12.9 20.6 25.3 34.1 37.8 41.3

9 Green Church Road 9 4.8 8.1 15.8 20.5 29.3 33.0 36.5

17.1 Sussex Road / Rt. 40 (West) 17.1 12.9 8.1 7.7 12.4 21.2 24.9 28.4

24.8 Railroad Bed Road 24.8 20.6 15.8 7.7 4.7 13.5 17.2 20.7

29.5 Courthouse Road 29.5 25.3 20.5 12.4 4.7 8.8 12.5 16

38.3 Sussex Road / Rt. 40 (East) 38.3 34.1 29.3 21.2 13.5 8.8 3.7 7.2

42 Old Forty Road 42 37.8 33 24.9 17.2 12.5 3.7 3.5

45.5 Peters Bridge Boat Ramp 45.5 41.3 36.5 28.4 20.7 16 7.2 3.5

LEGEND

Access Point Analysis

Recognition/Presentations - Page 28



N O T T O W A Y  R I V E R  B L U E W A Y  G R E E N W A Y  M A S T E R  P L A N
T I M M O N S  G R O U P  |  J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 4

P A G E  2 2

Excellent

Good

Fair

River
Interconnectivity

At least 2 half and 2 full day 
trips

At least 1 half and 3 full day 
trips

Some half and full day trips, 
but mostly multi-day trips

Building off of the previous table, this table tallies the half and full day trips available from each access 

point. Access points offering multiple half day trips should be prioritized for being more accessible to 

beginners, paddlers with limited time, and those who prefer to take breaks for picnicking, swimming, and 

other activities.  

Mile 
Marker Access Point Name Half Day Trips Full Day Trips Multi-Day Trips Overall Interconnectivity Ranking

0 Purdy Boat Ramp 1 1 6 (Existing)

4.2 Jarratt Boat Ramp 2 1 5 (Existing)

9 Green Church Road 1 3 4 Good

17.1 Sussex Road / Rt. 40 (West) 1 3 4 Good

24.8 Railroad Bed Road 2 2 4 Excellent

29.5 Courthouse Road 1 3 4 Good

38.3 Sussex Road / Rt. 40 (East) 2 2 4 Excellent

42 Old Forty Road 1 2 5 Fair

45.5 Peters Bridge Boat Ramp 2 1 6 (Existing)

Note: This table only calculates trips between two access points on the river within Sussex County. 

LEGEND

Access Point Analysis

Recognition/Presentations - Page 29



N O T T O W A Y  R I V E R  B L U E W A Y  G R E E N W A Y  M A S T E R  P L A N
T I M M O N S  G R O U P  |  J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 4

P A G E  2 3

Lower Risk

Moderate Risk

High Risk

Mile Marker Name
100 Year Base 
Flood Elevation 

(FEMA)

Lowest Bank 
Elevation Road Elevation Minor Flooding 

Elevation*

Likely 
Infrastructure 

Elevation

Infrastructure Feet 
Above Lowest Bank 

Elevation

9 Green Church Road 86.5 66 85 79 79 13

17.1 Sussex Road / Rt. 40 (West) 71.5 54 73 67 67 13

24.8 Railroad Bed Road n/a 43 61 56 54 11

29.5 Courthouse Road n/a 38 59 51 49 11

38.3 Sussex Road / Rt. 40 (East) n/a 29 46 42 36 7

42 Old Forty Road n/a 26 42 39 32 6

45.5 Peters Bridge Boat Ramp n/a 22 36 35
32 

(existing parking lot)
10

*How this value was calculated: FEMA’s 100 Year Base Flood Elevation was initially used to assess flood risk; however, this information was not available for 
all sites, and all sites will be impacted by more minor occurrences of flooding than the 100 year flood event. NOAA’s flood determinations were used instead. 
Assuming that the Nottoway River is on average 2’ deep at its centerline, the NOAA minor flooding height of 15 feet will be approximately 13 feet above the lowest 
bank elevation. LIDAR digital elevation models, from which contour information was derived, cannot map areas under water. The lowest contour shown in the 
preceding access point inventory maps is thus assumed to be the lowest bank elevation above water. 

All values are approximate and should not be taken as an official determination of a site’s flood risk. 

The highest elevations of sites 
assessed.

Roughly equivalent to the 
elevation at Peters Bridge

The lowest elevations of sites 
assessed

As discussed in the hydrology section, the Nottoway River floods frequently due to its broad floodplain 

and large watershed. All potential access locations face some degree of flood risk. However, 

some locations face more frequent flooding than others. This chart assesses the likely elevation of site 

infrastructure (for example: parking lot, information kiosks, seating areas) relative to the river elevation. 

Ramps, paths, or stairs down to the river from the parking lot are likely to be even more frequently 

inundated.

Flood Risk

LEGEND

Access Point Analysis

Recognition/Presentations - Page 30



N O T T O W A Y  R I V E R  B L U E W A Y  G R E E N W A Y  M A S T E R  P L A N
T I M M O N S  G R O U P  |  J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 4

P A G E  2 4

Flood Risk

This graphic displays NOAA’s reported flood impacts to existing infrastructure benchmarks at different river heights. Minor flooding begins 

at a river height of 15 feet, however, many of the access point sites will have infrastructure located at points that will be at risk prior to even 

“minor” flooding. This finding illustrates the importance of investing in materials and surfacing that can endure frequent flood events. 

The record flood crest of the Nottoway River in the vicinity of Stony Creek is 23.66 feet and was set in 1940, following deluges associated 

with an unnamed hurricane. The river has crested above 20 feet 11 times since record keeping started. Minor to moderate flooding of 15-

17 feet is a common event, occuring about once or twice per year most years. 

Minor 
Flooding

Moderate 
Flooding

Major 
Flooding

24

22

20

18

16

14

12

10

8

6

4

2 Courthouse 
Road

Sussex Road / 
Rt. 40 (East)

Green Church 
Road

Railroad Bed 
Road

Sussex Road / 
Rt. 40 (West) Old Forty Road Peters Bridge 

Boat Ramp
Jarratt Boat 

Ramp  
Purdy Boat 

Ramp

The concrete boat ramp 

at Jarratt Boat Ramp is fully 

inundated.

Lowland flooding 

begins along Route 40.

Lowlands flood 

between Stony Creek 

and Railroad Bed Road

River Height

Lowland flooding 

begins along Route 40.

Record 
Crest

Potential 
Access Point 
Infrastructure 

Elevations

River Base 
Flow

Access Point Analysis

Recognition/Presentations - Page 31



N O T T O W A Y  R I V E R  B L U E W A Y  G R E E N W A Y  M A S T E R  P L A N
T I M M O N S  G R O U P  |  J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 4

P A G E  2 5

Land ownership factors into the overall cost and timeline of development. Access points can take advantage 

of different funding mechanisms such as those offered by state and federal departments of transportation 

that promote facilitating river access at bridge crossings where access easements for maintenance already 

exist. Sites adjacent to bridge crossings were prioritized as a primary strategy for improving river access.
Land Ownership

Mile Marker Name Ownership Easements? Easement Type

9 Green Church Road Private Yes VDOT Bridge

17.1 Sussex Road / Rt. 40 (West) Private Yes
VDOT Bridge, former VDOT Right of Way, 

gift of open space

24.8 Railroad Bed Road Private Yes VDOT Bridge

29.5 Courthouse Road Private Yes VDOT Bridge

38.3 Sussex Road / Rt. 40 (East) Private Yes VDOT Bridge

42 Old Forty Road Private Yes VDOT Bridge

Access Point Analysis

Recognition/Presentations - Page 32



N O T T O W A Y  R I V E R  B L U E W A Y  G R E E N W A Y  M A S T E R  P L A N
T I M M O N S  G R O U P  |  J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 4

P A G E  2 6

Cost of Development was evaluated based on site variables such as slope to river, potential driveway 

distance, and potential for additional regulatory or permitting requirements. Sites with a relatively “low” Cost 

of Development may require less engineering of the site or have fewer regulatory hurdles, and are preferred 

over sites with a relatively “high” Cost of Development. Lower Cost of Development is also associated 

with lands that have favorable easement statuses for public use and that do not require additional land 

acquisition. 

Mile 
Marker Name

Topography at 
Likely Parking Lot 

Location
Floodway 
Impacts

Wetland 
Impacts*

Grade Change from
Existing Road to 

Likely Parking Lot 
Location (ft)

Grade Change from 
Likely Parking Lot 

Location to River (ft)
Cost of 

Development

9 Green Church Road Flat Yes Medium 6 13 Medium

17.1 Sussex Road / Rt. 40 (West) Flat Yes Low 6 13 Medium

24.8 Railroad Bed Road Flat No Medium 5 11 Low

29.5 Courthouse Road Flat No High 10 11 Medium

38.3 Sussex Road / Rt. 40 (East) Flat No High 10 7 High

42 Old Forty Road Flat No High 10 6 High

Cost of 
Development

*Wetlands were extracted from the US Fish and Wildlife’s National Wetland Inventory. This GIS layer analyzes high altitude imagery to predict the likely presence of 
wetlands and thus may not be exhaustive or accurate. The presence of wetlands on site must be verified through field study. This data should not be interpreted as 
an official determination of the presence, absence, or extent of wetlands on a site.

Access Point Analysis

Recognition/Presentations - Page 33



N O T T O W A Y  R I V E R  B L U E W A Y  G R E E N W A Y  M A S T E R  P L A N
T I M M O N S  G R O U P  |  J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 4

P A G E  2 7

!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

WAVERLY

WAKEFIELD

JARRATT

STONY CREEK

PURDY BOAT RAMP JARRATT BOAT RAMP

CARYS BRIDGE BOAT RAMP

HERCULES VDWR BOAT RAMP

PETERS BRIDGE BOAT RAMP

LEGEND

! Potential Access Points

5 Mile Buffer

10 Mile Buffer

Towns

Public Lands

! Existing Boat Ramps

0 105 MILES [

10 MILES TO STONY CREEK

10 MILES TO WAVERLY

10 MILES TO JARRATT

5 MILES TO JARRATT

5 M

ILES TO STONY CREEK

10 MILES TO WAKEFIELD

5 MILES TO WAKEFIELD

5 MILES TO WAVERLY

Locating access points in proximity to population centers benefits residents with improved outdoor 

recreation opportunities for improved wellness and quality of life. Easy access to restaurants, 

lodging, and businesses can facilitate an improved tourism experience for non-local blueway users, 

and demand for these amenities may in turn spur economic development within nearby towns. In 

addition, as river usage grows, so may incidents requiring emergency services or increased police 

patrolling. Locating access points close to towns may mitigate increased demands on 

those agencies.

Proximity

Mile 
Marker Name Driving Time to 

Nearest Town Nearest Town

9
Green Church 

Road
10 min. Jarratt / Stony Creek

17.1
Sussex Road / 

Rt. 40 (West)
5 min. Stony Creek

24.8
Railroad Bed 

Road
15 min. Stony Creek

29.5
Courthouse 

Road
15 min. Stony Creek

38.3
Sussex Road / 

Rt. 40 (East)
15 min. Stony Creek

42
Old Forty 

Road
20 min.

Waverly / Stony 

Creek

Access Point Analysis

Recognition/Presentations - Page 34



N O T T O W A Y  R I V E R  B L U E W A Y  G R E E N W A Y  M A S T E R  P L A N
T I M M O N S  G R O U P  |  J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 4

P A G E  2 8

Flood Risk Land 
Ownership

ProximityCost of 
Development

RankRiver
Interconnectivity

Analysis Conclusions
The table below summarizes the access point considerations and analyses from previous pages. Key findings included:

• River interconnectivity played the highest role in selecting sites for a functional blueway trail. 

• Even the sites with highest infrastructure elevations are likely to be influenced by flooding.

• Sites in the floodway, paradoxically, had higher infrastructure elevations than some of the sites downstream, so should not be excluded from consideration solely 

for facing an additional regulatory hurdle.   

• Favorable land ownership or existing easements that could allow for public use strongly influenced stakeholder preference for the initial two access points. 

• All sites share topographical similarities (flat bottomlands where wetlands are likely present leading to a steep grade change at the river’s edge) that will likely 

yield similar development costs, with the exception of the costs for acquiring land if currently held, and the need to obtain no-rise certificates for sites located 

within the regulatory floodway.

• The difference in proximity to population centers across sites was nominal.

• Several additional factors that played a role in site prioritization not included in this table were whether the access point was located on the designated State 

Scenic River segment of the Nottoway, and the river conditions and downstream navigability from each access point.  

9 Green Church Road Good High (Floodway) Private Medium Good 3

17.1 Sussex Road / Rt. 40 (West) Good High (Floodway) Private Medium Good 3

24.8 Railroad Bed Road Excellent Moderate
Conservation 

Easement Planned
Low Fair 1

29.5 Courthouse Road Good Moderate Utility Easement Medium Fair 2

38.3 Sussex Road / Rt. 40 (East) Excellent High Private High Fair 3

42 Old Forty Road Fair High Private High Fair 4

Mile 
Marker

Name

Recognition/Presentations - Page 35



N O T T O W A Y  R I V E R  B L U E W A Y  G R E E N W A Y  M A S T E R  P L A N
T I M M O N S  G R O U P  |  J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 4

P A G E  2 9

Master Plan
• Phase 1

• Phase 2

• Phase 1 Concept Plans

• Character Imagery

• Precedent Blueway and Greenway Projects

• Project Schedule

• Opinion of Probable Costs

Recognition/Presentations - Page 36



N O T T O W A Y  R I V E R  B L U E W A Y  G R E E N W A Y  M A S T E R  P L A N
T I M M O N S  G R O U P  |  J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 4

P A G E  3 0

Stakeholder meetings held from June-November 2024 provided input 

on the characteristics of the informal access points by which people 

access the Nottoway River and river conditions between access points. 

These observations are recorded within the access point inventory. 

Stakeholder meetings also refined priorities for locating the first two 

access points to be prioritized and for the amenities that should be 

included in the conceptual plan renderings for those sites.

Initial site analyses indicated that the Railroad Bed Road and 

Courthouse Road sites were among the most favorable for developing 

river access in the first phase of the Master Plan. The Nottoway River 

between these two points is located within the State Scenic River 

designation, and has superior qualities for paddling, being usually 

free of obstructions, and with a sandy river bottom that is easy to 

portage when the river is low. The distance between the two access 

points is 4.7 miles, ideal for the two to three hour trip preferred by 

most paddlers. The purchase of a parcel adjacent to Railroad Bed 

Road by a conservation group amenable to providing public river 

access cemented stakeholder opinion that these two access points be 

prioritized in the first phase.

The Railroad Bed Road parcel, once under conservation easement, 

will connect other protected lands along the Nottoway, protecting the 

riparian corridor, and the qualities that support the Nottoway’s Scenic 

River designation, from future development. The planned Wildlife 

Management Area (WMA) to the south of the river in this segment 

could eventually host an additional boat launch or other amenities as 

permitted under WMA policies such as primitive camping for Blueway 

users. This growing constellation of conservation lands could also 

eventually foster hiking or multiuse trails in support of a Nottoway 

Greenway. 

While Railroad Bed and Courthouse Road sites establish an excellent 

half-day paddle trip between them, large gaps remain between existing 

boat ramps and the new access points. Future phases of development 

will allow the vision of a connected water trail traversing the county to 

be achieved. These prospects are more fully considered in Phase 2 of 

the master plan.  

Master Plan: Phase 1
!

!

!

!

!

11 MILES

9.4 MILES

20.6 MILES

4.7 MILES

4.2 MILES

16 MILES

JARRATT

STONY CREEK

COURTHOUSE ROAD

RAILROAD BED ROAD

PURDY BOAT RAMP

JARRATT BOAT RAMP

PETERS BRIDGE BOAT RAMP

0 3 61.5 MILES [

LEGEND

! Existing Boat Ramps

Conservation Easements

Planned DWR WMA

Public Lands

! Phase 1 Access Points

BIG WOODS

FLIPPO-GENTRY

CHUB SANDHILL

GARLAND GRAY

Stakeholder Preferences:

Conversations with stakeholders influenced the access point 

conceptual design and character imagery. Stakeholders preferred:

• A low-frills approach to begin

• Gravel parking lots

• Ramps for trailored unloading of small motorcraft (jon boats) onto 

the river in addition to canoes and kayaks

• Few amenities to reduce maintenance costs

Phase 1 Sites: Railroad Bed Road and Courthouse Road

Attributes: 

• High interconnectivity (2-3 hour trip)

• Favorable ownership or easement status supporting public use

• Favorable river conditions

• On the State Scenic River designated portion of the Nottoway

Recognition/Presentations - Page 37



N O T T O W A Y  R I V E R  B L U E W A Y  G R E E N W A Y  M A S T E R  P L A N
T I M M O N S  G R O U P  |  J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 4

P A G E  3 1

Master Plan: Phase 1

PU
RDY BOAT RAMP

JARRAT BOAT RAMP

I-9
5

RAILROAD B
ED ROAD

COURTHOUSE ROAD

PE
TER

S B
RID

GE B
OAT RAMP

RT
. 4

0

RT
. 4

0

4.2 MI. 20.6 MI. 4.7 MI 16.0 MI

1 MILE

ST
O

N
Y 

CR
EE

K
ENCOURAGE DEVELOPMENT

OF RIVER OUTFITTER ENTERPRISE
ENCOURAGE DEVELOPMENT

OF RIVER OUTFITTER ENTERPRISE

LEGEND

Existing Boat Ramp

Phase 1 Proposed Boat Ramp

Proposed Campground

Proposed River Outfitter 
Entrepreneurial Zone

This linear graphic visualizes Phase 1 of the 

Nottoway Blueway Trail within Sussex County. 

Additional initiatives recommended in Phase 1 of 

the Master Plan encourage private development to 

build connectivity to the existing DWR boat ramps. 

These “river entrepreneurial zones” are located 

close to the main thoroughfares of I-95 and Route 

40. With no river outfitters located in the county at 

present, river access is currently limited to owners of 

paddle and motorcraft. Besides offering equipment 

rentals and shuttle services, river outfitters can 

support amenities outside the scope of Phase 1 

designs, such as camping or picnic facilities. The 

development of these enterprises can also assist 

in promoting river tourism and disseminating 

information about river conditions.

Entrepreneurs interested in river recreation 

businesses must consider flood risks. Portions of 

roads such as Blue Star Highway south of Stony 

Creek are located within the FEMA regulatory 

floodplain, which places constraints on development. 

Even within the 100- year floodplain, passive, low-

impact uses, such as a campground or a paddlecraft 

rental service operating out of a shipping container, 

may be a more appropriate and flood-resilient 

business model rather than a traditional brick-and-

mortar storefront. 

Recognition/Presentations - Page 38



N O T T O W A Y  R I V E R  B L U E W A Y  G R E E N W A Y  M A S T E R  P L A N
T I M M O N S  G R O U P  |  J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 4

P A G E  3 2

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

JARRATT

STONY CREEK

COURTHOUSE ROAD

RAILROAD BED ROAD

SUSSEX ROAD WESTSUSSEX ROAD WEST

Lorem ipsum

SUSSEX ROAD EAST

WMA LAUNCH (BY OTHERS)

PURDY BOAT RAMP

JARRATT BOAT RAMP

PETERS BRIDGE BOAT RAMP

0 3 61.5 MILES [

LEGEND

! Existing Boat Ramps

Conservation Easements

Planned DWR WMA

Public Lands

! Phase 2 Access Points

! Phase 1 Access Points

Greenway Trail

11 MILES

9.4 MILES

12.9 MILES

7.7 MILES

4.7 MILES

4.2 MILES

7.2 MILES

8.8 MILES

BIG WOODSFLIPPO-GENTRY

CHUB SANDHILL

GARLAND GRAY

This graphic envisions Phase 2 of the Master Plan. In this phase, three 

additional boat ramps fill in gaps left by Phase 1. Additionally, this 

Phase identifies several initial segments of a Nottoway Greenway trail 

that utilizes public lands and those in the process of being conserved 

under easement. 

In this phase, two additional access points are envisioned on Sussex 

Road (Rt. 40). As a thoroughfare between Stony Creek and Waverly, 

these locations offer convenient river access to the county’s population 

centers. The Sussex Road West location will hold particular interest to 

visitors as it is the start of the State Scenic River designation. These 

two access points add an additional three potential half-day paddle 

trips, multiplying the experiences available to users and providing 

several easy convenient routes for shuttling vehicles when planning a 

one-way trip. The third access point, being planned by others, is within 

the planned Wildlife Management Area. 

DWR acquired 1,597 acres for the creation of a new Wildlife 

Management Area in 2023. With 2.5 miles of river frontage and an 

intent of protecting the land for hiking, fishing, hunting and wildlife 

watching, this stretch of the river is envisioned as an initial span of a 

Greenway trail. This trail could then extend through conserved Railroad 

Bed Road parcel where the Phase 1 access point is planned, and 

westward through other properties under conservation easements. 

Two other opportunities for segments of a Nottoway Greenway were 

identified. The parking lot at Peter’s Bridge Boat Ramp could provide 

access to a greenway trail that begins within the Chub Sandhill Natural 

Preserve. A short hiking trail currently leads north to an overlook on 

the Nottoway. A hiking trail could extend north through Chub Sandhill, 

though effort would be required to avoid impact to this site’s sensitive 

and rare plant communities. North of Chub Sandhill, several properties 

are under conservation easement spanning the Nottoway to Old Forty 

Road and beyond. 

South of Stony Creek, the Blue Star Highway parallels Interstate 95 

as an access road. These lands are in the 100-year floodplain as well 

as the regulatory floodway in some areas, which limits the potential 

for traditional development. An on-road bike path or off-road multi-use 

path could parallel this road south until the Nottoway curves west, or 

Master Plan: Phase 2

continue until Jarratt. Future phases of a greenway could follow the 

river, or proceed as a designated on-road bike route that utilizes quiet 

local roads to extend the journey to Purdy Boat Ramp or points beyond. 

Additional study should consider a greenway’s potential connectivity to 

other existing or planned long-range on- or off-road bike paths.

Additional conversations with stakeholders are necessary to build 

support for a greenway. First, the activities this greenway should 

support (for example, hiking, biking, horseback riding) must be 

determined. The Nottoway’s broad floodplain is both an opportunity and 

constraint for expanding recreational opportunities within the county. 

Recreation within the floodplain is generally viewed as sustainable 

because it carries a smaller adverse impact on the floodplain. However, 

a greenway trail would have to navigate the Nottoway’s many tributary 

creeks, swamps, and other wetlands, many of which are home to 

sensitive and rare species. Thus, on-road bike trails or trails that 

utilize existing right of ways should also be explored as a means for 

minimizing disturbance.  

Conservation organizations recognize the ecological, scenic, and 

cultural value of the Nottoway River, and numerous efforts are 

underway to conserve lands adjacent to it. Though conservation 

easements are not required to provide public access, early coordination 

with landowners and organizations could establish public use as a 

provision in future conservation easements and help build support for a 

greenway effort.  

Recognition/Presentations - Page 39



N O T T O W A Y  R I V E R  B L U E W A Y  G R E E N W A Y  M A S T E R  P L A N
T I M M O N S  G R O U P  |  J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 4

P A G E  3 3

PU
RDY BOAT RAMP

JARRAT BOAT RAMP

I-9
5

RAILR
OAD BED

 RO
AD

SUSSEX ROAD W
EST

SUSSEX ROAD EAST

COURT
HOUSE

 RO
AD

PE
TER

S B
RID

GE B
OAT RAMP

R
t. 

40

R
t. 

40

4.2 MI. 12.9 MI. 7.7 MI. 4.7 MI 8.8 MI 7.2 MI

1 MILE

ST
O

N
Y 

CR
EE

K

W
MA B

OAT LAUNCH

 (B
Y O

THER
S)

LEGEND

Existing Boat Ramp

Phase 1 Proposed Boat Ramp

Phase 2 Proposed Boat Launch

Trail Network Connectivity

Proposed Restroom

Proposed Campground

Proposed River Outfitter 
Entrepreneurial Zone

ENCOURAGE DEVELOPMENT
OF RIVER OUTFITTER ENTERPRISE

ENCOURAGE DEVELOPMENT
OF RIVER OUTFITTER ENTERPRISE

This linear graphic visualizes Phase 2 of the 

Nottoway Blueway Trail with additional opportunities 

for greenway development. 

The creation of an access point at Sussex Road 

West halves the connectivity gap between Jarratt 

Boat Ramp and Railroad Bed Road, but 12.9 miles 

remains a long day’s paddle. Private river enterprise 

in this area continues to bridge this gap, perhaps 

expanding into bike rental services as a greenway 

trail develops. Between Courthouse Road and 

Sussex Road East, shuttle services could pick up 

one-way boaters who may have launched from 

Sussex Road West or Railroad Bed Road. Locating 

campgrounds in both of these areas as well as 

offering primitive camping within the WMA would lay 

the groundwork for a multi-day paddle tour of the 

Nottoway.

Anticipating the needs of users as river tourism 

increases can protect the sensitive habitats along 

the Nottoway. Explore the feasibility of adding 

restrooms and waste receptacles at access points 

with high usership and at ecologically sensitive 

sites such as at Chub Sandhill to protect the natural 

environment and to promote a positive visitor 

experience. Conduct periodic visitor surveys to solicit 

feedback for future improvements.

Master Plan: Phase 2

Recognition/Presentations - Page 40



N O T T O W A Y  R I V E R  B L U E W A Y  G R E E N W A Y  M A S T E R  P L A N
T I M M O N S  G R O U P  |  J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 4

P A G E  3 4

BOAT RAMP (13% GRADE)

GRAVEL PARKING 
LOT

50’ TO
P O

F 

BA
N

K
 SETBAC

K

FLO
W

Access Point 1 
Concept Plan:
Railroad Bed Road

RAILROAD BED ROAD

CURRENT 
INFORMAL 

ACCESS POINT 
AND TRAIL

This graphic depicts a conceptual site plan for the first of the proposed two Phase 1 access points, Railroad Bed Road. Key site features include 

a 7,000 square foot gravel parking lot and ramp to accommodate vehicles hauling trailers. The parking lot can accommodate approximately 10-12 

vehicles and trailers (capacity will vary based on individuals’ parking habits as parking lot striping is not anticipated in this design). A 50’ setback 

from the top of bank is a recommended best practice for preserving the ecological health of the riparian corridor. This site is located across the 

river from a popular informal access point with a sandy beach and shoulder parking.

Recognition/Presentations - Page 41



N O T T O W A Y  R I V E R  B L U E W A Y  G R E E N W A Y  M A S T E R  P L A N
T I M M O N S  G R O U P  |  J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 4

P A G E  3 5

EXISTING OVERHEAD 
POWER LINE CORRIDOR

20’ OFFSET

30’ OFFSET

50’ TOP OF BANK 

SETBACK

FLO
W

GRAVEL 
PARKING LOT

BOAT RAMP (15% GRADE)

C
O

U
RT

H
O

U
SE

 R
O

A
D

Access Point 2 
Concept Plan:
Courthouse Road

This graphic depicts a conceptual site plan for the second of the proposed two Phase 1 access points, Courthouse Road, 4.7 miles downstream 

from the Railroad Bed Road access point. The 8,500 square foot parking lot can accommodate approximately 12-14 vehicles and trailers. This 

site is constrained by overhead utility lines that may have an easement governing allowable activities underneath. Additional research is required 

to determine necessary offsets from the power line as well as to locate the VDOT right of way recorded as a ‘gift of open space’ on this parcel to 

finalize parking lot and ramp locations. 

Recognition/Presentations - Page 42



N O T T O W A Y  R I V E R  B L U E W A Y  G R E E N W A Y  M A S T E R  P L A N
T I M M O N S  G R O U P  |  J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 4

P A G E  3 6

Wayfinding Examples
Riverside Navigation Signage Blueway-Greenway Coordinated Branding Wayfinding Column With MileageInformation Kiosk

Surfacing Launch Amenities
Gravel Parking Anti-Slip Textured Concrete Boat Slide for Hand-Carried BoatsConcrete Boat Ramp

Character Imagery The images below show inspiration imagery for surfacing, amenities, and signage as 

expressed by stakeholder preferences as well as examples from other blueway projects. 

Recognition/Presentations - Page 43



N O T T O W A Y  R I V E R  B L U E W A Y  G R E E N W A Y  M A S T E R  P L A N
T I M M O N S  G R O U P  |  J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 4

P A G E  3 7

As the Nottoway Blueway develops, study of comparable projects can provide insights on how to develop 

a successful blueway or blue-greenway. The following Blueway and Blue-Greenway were identified as 

potentially relevant precedents: 

NEUSE RIVER BLUEWAY PLAN

The proposed Neuse River Blueway parallels the existing Neuse River Greenway in Raleigh, North 

Carolina and surrounding areas. While there were several existing launches prior to this master 

plan, they were located too far apart for most paddlers to travel between access points, and the user 

demand at the shared greenway/boat launch parking lots often exceeded available spaces. The 

goal of this plan was to create a cohesive 25 mile paddle trail offering multiple opportunities for 1-2 

hour paddle trips. Like the Nottoway, the Neuse River has an extensive floodplain that limits locating 

amenities.

This plan includes detailed user preference data from community engagement and surveys. These 

studies found that most paddlers prefer 1-2 and 2-4 hour trips (3-5 and 6-10 miles respectively) 

and desired additional amenities and ADA-friendly infrastructure. This user feedback confirms an 

understanding of basic recreational paddlers’ wants and needs that are applicable to the Nottoway 

River Blueway Master Plan. Amenities including restrooms, wayfinding signage along the river, and 

improved launches were desired. Several concept plans illustrating various parking lot and launch 

configurations were included.

JACKSON RIVER SCENIC TRAIL AND ALLEGHENY 
HIGHLANDS BLUEWAY

The Jackson River Scenic Trail is an existing 14.3 mile rails-to-trails multiuse trail that travels through 

rural countryside of western Virginia. This greenway largely parallels the Allegheny Highlands Blueway 

on the Jackson River, which like the Nottoway holds a scenic river designation. Both blueway and 

greenway terminate near Covington, Virginia, a city which has experienced economic and population 

decline since it peaked as a center for manufacturing in the 1960s. At least one outfitter operates 

out of the city. Jackson River levels are governed by the upstream Gathright Dam at Lake Moomaw, 

ensuring consistent and predictable water levels - except on scheduled water release days when water 

levels and flows increase dramatically. 

Access point parking lots often service both blueway and greenway users and include amenities such 

as vault toilets, shade structures and wayfinding. These amenities are above the river at greenway 

crossings to remove them from more floodprone areas. A pair of websites succinctly provide maps, 

links to river information and local tourism details, and consistent branding across the blue and 

greenway pages. As water release days result in rapidly changing river conditions, it is essential 

that informational websites provide users with reliable, accessible information about water release 

schedules, river heights, and potential hazards. 

CASE STUDY 1 CASE STUDY 2

Precedent Blueway and Greenway Projects

Recognition/Presentations - Page 44



N O T T O W A Y  R I V E R  B L U E W A Y  G R E E N W A Y  M A S T E R  P L A N
T I M M O N S  G R O U P  |  J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 4

P A G E  3 8

Project
Kickoff

Stakeholder 
Meetings, Mapping 

and Analysis

Master Plan 
Development

DCR Recreational 
Trails Program Grant 

Application

JUNE 2024 JULY - NOVEMBER 
2024

NOVEMBER - 
DECEMBER 2024

JANUARY - 
MAY 2026

Project Schedule

Image: bald cypress ‘knees’ line the lower reaches of the Nottoway River in Sussex County.

Recognition/Presentations - Page 45



N O T T O W A Y  R I V E R  B L U E W A Y  G R E E N W A Y  M A S T E R  P L A N
T I M M O N S  G R O U P  |  J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 4

P A G E  3 9

Opinion of Probable Costs

Item Budget Estimate
Construction
Mobilization  $5,000.00 

Clearing, Topsoil, & Grading  $20,000.00 

Erosion & Sediment Control  $20,000.00 

Gravel Paving  $70,000.00 

Concrete Boat Ramp $30,000 

Shoreline Stabilization (Riprap) $15,000 

Other Site Improvements
Site Furnishings and Signage  $15,000.00 

Subtotal  $175,000.00 

Estimated Construction Cost  $175,000.00 
Contingencies & Escalation 20.00%  $35,000.00 

Bonds, Insurance, & OH&P 8.00%  $14,000.00 

Construction Management / Testing / Inspections 5.00%  $8,750.00 

Subtotal  $232,750.00 

Survey, Environmental, and Geotechnical Services  $25,000.00 

Architecture and Engineering Design and Permitting  $125,000.00 

Estimated Total Project Cost  $382,750.00 

Below is an opinion of probable costs to construct one access point consisting of a concrete boat ramp, 

an approximately 8,000 square foot gravel parking lot, and gravel access drive. Wetland delineation and 

site surveys may reveal the need for additional engineering and permitting costs. 

Recognition/Presentations - Page 46



N O T T O W A Y  R I V E R  B L U E W A Y  G R E E N W A Y  M A S T E R  P L A N
T I M M O N S  G R O U P  |  J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 4

P A G E  4 0

In 2024, Sussex County sought the support of Timmons Group to 

engage in a master planning process to study the Nottoway River’s 

suitability for recreational use and potential access locations associated 

with a new blue-greenway along the river within the County. This report 

assessed the river and adjacent lands, identified opportunities and 

constraints, and identified two initial access points for prioritization as 

Phase 1 of the Nottoway Blueway Trail.  

The Nottoway River is gaining recognition for its scenic qualities, 

unique ecosystems, and cultural and historical significance. 

Conservation efforts such as longleaf pine habitat restoration across 

the county indicate that Sussex County will only continue to expand its 

ecological richness. The Nottoway Blueway and Greenway will be a 

catalyst for growing the outdoor recreation economy in Sussex County, 

improving the health and wellbeing of residents, stimulating tourism, 

and contributing to revitalized downtowns. 

The qualities that make the Nottoway River unique and contribute to 

Sussex County’s rural character, however, pose challenges for blue and 

greenway development. The Nottoway’s broad floodplain and frequent 

flooding foster the biologically diverse habitats found within and along 

the river. Undeveloped riparian corridors contribute to the river’s 

state designated Scenic River status. The creation of a blueway and 

greenway must carefully balance development of river-based recreation 

with preserving the Nottoway River’s outstanding qualities. If carried 

out successfully, the Nottoway Blueway and Greenway will become a 

treasured public open space for Sussex County and the region.  

Conclusion

Recognition/Presentations - Page 47



N O T T O W A Y  R I V E R  B L U E W A Y  G R E E N W A Y  M A S T E R  P L A N
T I M M O N S  G R O U P  |  J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 4

P A G E  4 1

Acknowledgments

The following individuals and organizations provided critical feedback and support during the master 
planning process:

Landon Bridges – Transportation Planner, Crater Planning District Commission
Jamie Craig – Beechtree Group
David Conmy – Deputy County Administrator, Director of Economic Development, Sussex County
The Honorable Deste Cox – Treasurer, Sussex County Treasurer
Richard Douglas – County Administrator, Sussex County
Stacey Feken – Albemarle-Pamlico National Estuary Partnership 
Kit Friedman – Environment and Resilience Planner, Crater Planning District Commission, and 
Southern Rivers Roundtable Coordinator
Adams Lumsden-Cook –  Economic Development Intern, Sussex County
Mitch Sims – Conservation Director, Friends of the Rivers of Virginia
The Honorable Otto Wachsmann – Virginia State Delegate, 83rd District 
Garland Gray Forestry Center

Resources:

Cheroenhaka (Nottoway) Indian Tribe. Website. Accessed November 2024. 
 https://www.cheroenhaka-nottoway.org/

Federal Emergency Management Agency. Flood Insurance Study, Sussex County, Virginia and Incorporated 
 Areas. July 7, 2009. 

National Atmospheric and Oceanic Administration. Nottoway River near Stony Creek Flood Gauge and 
 Recent and Historic Crests. Website. https://water.noaa.gov/gauges/STYV2

Nottoway Indian Tribe of Virginia. Website. Accessed November 2024. 
 http://www.nottowayindians.org/home.html 

Trout, W.E. III, and Turner, Jeff. The Virginia Canals and Navigations Society and the Blackwater-Nottoway 
 Riverkeeper Program.  The Blackwater, Nottoway, and Meherrin Rivers Atlas: Rediscovering River 
 History on the Chowan River and Its Branches. Second Edition, 2014.

Virginia Department of Wildlife Resources. Maps. “Nottoway River.” Accessed November 2024. 
 https://dwr.virginia.gov/waterbody/nottoway-river/

Recognition/Presentations - Page 48



BOARD ACTION FORM 
 
Agenda Item:   Public Hearing Item #4.01 
 
Subject:  Proposed FY2025-2026 Operating Budget 
 
Board Meeting Date:  May 15 2025 
 
============================================================================== 
 
Summary:   A public hearing has been scheduled for the proposed FY2025-2026 County operating 
budget, as presented at the April regular meeting, to include up to a five-cent real estate tax 
increase if needed.  The budget message summarizing key items in the proposed budget is 
attached for your convenience.  With the completion of the public hearing, the Board may hold 
additional budget public hearings as it deems necessary, with a target adoption date of May 29.   
 
Recommendation:  No action is requested at this time.  
 
Attachment:  FY2025-2026 Budget Message  
 
============================================================================= 
 
ACTION:  None 
 
              

              

               

 
MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     
 

  
Member Aye Nay    Member Aye Nay 
 
Baicy  ___ ___    Jones  ___ ___ 

Fly  ___ ___    Tolliver ___ ___ 

Futrell  ___ ___    Tyler  ___ ___  

 

White      ___ ___      

Public Hearing - Page 1



 
SUSSEX COUNTY FY2025-2026 BUDGET MESSAGE 

 
 

April 24, 2025 
 

To the Sussex County Board of Supervisors and Residents of Sussex County: 

 

I am pleased to present the recommended $51.73 million operating budget ($31 

million general fund) for fiscal year 2025-2026 for Sussex County, a $4.7 million 

or ten percent increase from FY24-25.  This budget was prepared in accordance 

with state budgeting requirements, and key highlights include the following: 

 

 Increasing the real estate tax rate from 53 cents to 58 cents to meet 

additional operational and capital needs, with the option of maintaining the 

existing tax rate ($635,000 that would be generated from a five cent tax 

increase is included as contingency funds, but can be easily removed to 

accommodate a balanced budget with no real estate tax increase) 

 Maintaining the existing personal property rate of $4.85 

 No fund balance appropriation 

 Accounting for newly implemented meals tax revenue ($400,000) 

 No proposed new fees nor increases to existing departmental fees 

(building, planning, animal services, etc.) 

 Maintaining existing county funding for the school system 

 

At the start of the budget process, a “big ticket” budget work session was held by 

the Board of Supervisors, where each department head and Constitutional 

Officer was provided the opportunity to present capital requests, personnel 

requests, and requested programmatic changes that would result in new costs.  

Following these meetings, the County Administrator and Director of Finance met 

with each department head and Constitutional Officer to review each line of their 

requested departmental budget and consider each department’s needs (the 

Public Hearing - Page 2



budget worksheets reflect the amount requested by the department head for 

each line item).  In addition, the Board of Supervisors met during formulation of 

the budget to review draft revenue projections and review funding requests of 

external organizations.  

 

Staff prepared this proposed budget with the goal of providing modest increases 

in budgeted expenditures for operational needs.  Expenditures within the 

recommended $51.73 million operating budget are summarized as follows (with 

comparison to FY24-25 approved budget): 

 

Legislative:    $204,443 ($28,214 increase)    

Administrative:   $1,408,272 ($117,934 increase)  

Legal:     $111,000 (no change) 

Financial:    $1,201,456 ($313,570 increase) 

Board of Election:   $304,489 ($21,071 increase) 

Judicial Administration:  $1,547,698 ($123,251 increase) 

Fire/Rescue/Emergency Ops: $3,506,334 ($550,217 increase) 

Sheriff’s Operations/Jail:  $7,338,161 ($554,596 increase) 

Public Works:   $1,995,244 ($179,088 increase) 

Heath/Human Services:  $4,843,128 ($72,870 decrease) 

Public Education:   $25,842,744 ($2,123,178 increase) 

Libraries/Recreation/Culture: $241,156 ($9,721 increase) 

Planning/Community Dev:  $563,901 ($22,559 increase) 

Debt Services:   $1,502,029 ($2,553 increase) 

Non-Departmental/Contingency: $1,116,805 ($755,785 increase) 

Capital Improvements:  $0 (no change) 

 

Expenditure Highlights for FY25-26: 

 

 For all employees, a three percent salary increase, matching increases for 

state Compensation Board and DSS employees, which will help to 

Public Hearing - Page 3



address cost-of-living increases and assist in retaining employees 

($109,335 county funds) 

 For all employees, a 1.5 percent one-time bonus, matching increases for 

state Compensation Board and DSS employees ($56,657 county funds) 

 An 11.6 percent increase in health insurance premium costs ($175,104) 

through Local Choice 

 In lieu of a pay and classification plan, provided for salary adjustments for 

the following positions, in an effort to retain existing employees and 

maintain competitiveness in attracting quality job candidates: Children’s 

Services—CSA Coordinator ($7,000); Commonwealth’s Attorney—two 

positions ($10,000); Clerk of Court—Deputy Clerk ($5,000) 

 Additional compensation for A/P Clerk (Administration) to serve as back-

up CSA Coordinator, a position required by the state Office of Children’s 

Services and that will provide additional capacity for review of services 

and other CSA functions ($20,000)  

 Establishment of separate Economic Development function and additional 

funds for professional services, marketing, and other economic 

development activities ($78,000) 

 Ten sets of turnout gear for volunteer firemen, in a continued effort to 

replace gear on a regular schedule ($35,000), and a cancer policy for 

volunteers ($23,000) 

 In accordance with the 24-month EMS plan, transition of contracted EMS 

to county services (hiring of eight full-time employees and reduction in 

contractual services costs; and additional operational expenses 

($300,000), to be offset by county EMS billing) 

 Maintaining CSA local funding at $621,000 (note department 

request/projection is $870,000 higher, so additional funds may need to be 

considered throughout the fiscal year) 

 An additional $100,000 in “Aid to Citizens” funding for DSS, returning 

closer to local funding levels in previous years (local matching funds for 

various DSS assistance programs) 

Public Hearing - Page 4



 Various Public Works projects, to include Courthouse lighting ($15,000), 

animal shelter well/septic improvements ($60,000), Waverly Convenience 

Center driveway repairs ($24,000), and convenience center resurfacing 

($36,000) 

 Contractual services for the 2026 General Reassessment ($213,000) 

(Note: consistent with the practice of funding previous reassessments, 

these services could be paid through reserve funds, which would make 

$213,000 available for other budget needs). 

 “Holiday pay” for the Sheriff’s Department (approximate cost of $250,000) 

is not budgeted but remains a priority item that could be funded through 

additional tax revenue, or in part by replacement of reassessment 

contractual services in operating budget 

 

As always, each Department Head and Constitutional Officer should be 

commended for refining expenditure estimates and working to achieve only 

modest increases as necessary in their budget requests.  I also wish to thank 

Treasurer Deste Cox for preparing our revenue projections, Director of Finance 

Kelly Moore for many hours of preparing the budget document and coordinating 

the budget development process, and Louise Brucato for preparing adjusted 

personnel salary and benefit figures.   

 

The Board of Supervisors may wish to consider budget work sessions prior to the 

advertised public hearing on May 15th.  Budget resolution adoption is tentatively 

scheduled for May 29th.  I welcome further discussion on this proposed budget as 

we move toward the upcoming fiscal year. 

 

Sincerely, 

Richard Douglas 

Richard Douglas 
County Administrator 

Public Hearing - Page 5



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:   Public Hearing Item #4.02 

Subject:  Conditional Use Permit #2025-01 

Board Meeting Date:  May 15 2025 

============================================================================== 

Summary:   The applicant, Howell Godfrey Jr., under Condition Use Permit #2025-01 is seeking 
re-approval of CUP #2022-04 for a shooting range on approximately 20 acres of land for public 
use. The property is located on the north side of Rt. 460 approximately 2 miles northwest from 
the Town of Waverly. 

Recommendation:  Planning Commission recommended approval for Conditional Use Permit 
#2025-01 contingent with certain conditions. However, the Planning Commission recommended 
approval of Conditional Use Permit 2024-05 to the Board of Supervisors on March 3, 2025 with a 
vote of 6-0 with 1 no vote with the consideration of those conditions. 

Attachments:  Application with supplement materials, staff report, and recommended 
conditions  

============================================================================== 

ACTION:    

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________ 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Baicy ___ ___ Jones ___ ___ 

Fly ___ ___ Tolliver ___ ___ 

Futrell ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

White ___ ___ 

Public Hearing - Page 6



County of Sussex, Virginia  CUP #2025-01 
 

 
 

1 | P a g e  
 

STAFF REPORT 

 

APPLICATION SUMMARY: 

 

Project:   The Blackwater Outdoor Shooting Range 

 

Location: The property is located on the north side of Rt. 460 (General 

Mahone Highway), approximately 2 miles northwest from 

the Town of Waverly. The proposed location includes 20 

acres out of a 167-acre parcel. To the north, there is mostly 

forested or agricultural lands. To the south, there is Butler’s 

Towing & Repair and a communication tower. To the west, 

there is Garrison Enterprise, John’s Auto Body, and two 

nearby residences. To the east, the property is adjacent to 

Sussex Shooting Sports, Emanuel Tires, and forested lands. 

 

 

Tax Parcel Number(s): Portion of Tax Parcel 16-A-1 

 

 

Applicant:   Howell Godfrey Jr. 

    4076 Spring Grove 

    Claremont, VA 23899 

     

 

APPLICATION: 

 

The applicant, Howell Godfrey Jr. seeks a re-approval of  conditional use permit (CUP) 

#2022-04 granted by the Board of Supervisors on January 19, 2023 for a shooting range 

on approximately 20 acres of land. The intent is to operate an outdoor shooting range that 

is available for public use. As part of the initial approval of CUP #2022-04, the project was 

subject to certain conditions to mitigate negative impacts such noise and lead remediation, ensuring 

safety measures are in place, and that the use would be constructed within a certain timeframe so 

as not to remain undeveloped well beyond the approval date.  Specific reference is made to 

condition #24 below:  

 

Condition #24: 

The Blackwater Outdoor Shooting Range shall be in full operation within 2 years of obtaining the 

CUP or the CUP shall be null and void.  

 
The applicant is seeking approval to reinstate the CUP in order to allow him to proceed with the 

construction of this project.  The applicant has stated the following reasons as to why the project 

did not meet the 2-year deadline of January 19, 2025, as follows:  

 

Public Hearing - Page 7



County of Sussex, Virginia  CUP #2025-01 
 

 
 

2 | P a g e  
 

 

 Health issues of the civil engineer which delayed site plan submission. 

 The timeframe to obtain site plan approval from DEQ which included a request for a 

conservation easement. 

 The timeframe to meet final requirements in order to obtain final site plan and land 

disturbance approval. 

 

At present, the applicant has accomplished site plan approval, posted surety, and was issued 

a land disturbing permit on November 20, 2024.  However, the applicant has delayed 

beginning construction and has filed for re-approval of the CUP as required due to the 2 

year time frame which recently expired on January 19, 2025.  The following dates are 

specific to the project approval process: 

 

1. Conditional site plan approval was granted on November 6, 2023 subject approval by 

DEQ for a permit by rule. 

2. DEQ approval was granted on June 27, 2024. 

3. Final site plan approval was obtained on November 20, 2024 with the issuance of a 

land disturbance permit. 

 

 

ELECTION DISTRICT: 

 

 Blackwater Election District 

 

 

DESCRIPTION: 

 

The applicant is requesting re-approval of CUP #2022-04 to construct and operate an 

outdoor shooting range as a commercial business to be available to the public. They will 

offer lane rentals for firearms such as handguns, rifles, and shotguns. The shooting range 

anticipates having 3 employees on staff which will be Certified Range Safety Officers. The 

hours of operation will vary depending on the amount of daylight. The hours of operation 

would be typically 10:00 am to 6:00 pm for Wednesday & Thursday and 9:00 am to 6:00 

pm for Friday through Sunday.  

 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN REVIEW: 

 

The current Comprehensive Plan future land use designation for this property is Industrial. 
Future industry and investment should build on existing industrial development along U.S. 460 and 

near Cabin Point Road north and west of the Town of Waverly. This area contains existing facilities 

(landfill, composting facility, and feed mill) and land being actively marketed for commercial 

and/or industrial investment (Sussex Green site and Cabin Point site).  

 

 

 

Public Hearing - Page 8



County of Sussex, Virginia  CUP #2025-01 
 

 
 

3 | P a g e  
 

 

ORDINANCE REVIEW: 

 

The current zoning designation for this property is A-1. The district is established to protect 

land and property values, ground water and surface water quality, and other resources. The 

intent is to provide for the continued security of the county’s agricultural sector by 

encouraging the orderly and responsible growth of its livestock, dairy, and poultry industry. 

Limited residential development is anticipated in these areas. 

  

The zoning district only allows this use through a CUP.  

 

 

STAFF CONCLUSIONS: 

 

Strengths: 

 

1. There are no residences immediately adjacent to the 20 acre site to be developed as 

part of the shooting range. 

2. The use provides an opportunity to bring in a new commercial business.  

3. Provides a recreational activity for public use in the form of shooting sports. 

4. There are no known publicly available shooting ranges within a 30 miles radius.  

5. The applicant has received site plan approval with the issuance of a land disturbance 

permit on November 20, 2024 and is ready to begin construction. 

 

Weaknesses: 

 

1. Located adjacent to a similar “private” use- Sussex Shooting Sports.  

2. The use has the potential to create a noise impact as proposed with shooting to occur 

completely outdoors. 

3. The proposed use is less than 200’ to a major roadway (Route 460) 

 

 Conditional Use Permit #2025-01 Recommended Conditions: 

 

The Planning Commission recommends approval of the conditional use permit consistent 

with the following conditions of the original permit with modification to Condition #1: 

1. The hours of operation shall be 10:00 am to 6:00 pm for Wednesday & Thursday, 

9:00 am to 6:00 pm for Friday and Saturday, and 12 pm to 6 pm for Sunday. 

2. The shooting range itself shall have a minimum setback of 300 feet from Rt. 460. 

3. The applicant shall maintain an undisturbed natural or man-made sound 

buffer/barrier a minimum distance of 200’ around the entire perimeter of the 

shooting area.  The buffer shall be enhanced and/or created where insufficient or 

non-existent, specifically along the front of the property parallel with Rt. 460 to add 

an additional safety measure and to lessen the noise impact. 

Public Hearing - Page 9



County of Sussex, Virginia  CUP #2025-01 
 

 
 

4 | P a g e  
 

4. Impact berms shall be installed at a minimum height of 20’ for rifle and 16’ for 

pistols as shown on the conceptual site plan dated 6/6/22, to stop any misdirected 

rounds that may tend to travel slightly to one side or the other either by accident or 

ricochet.  A side berm shall be added on the east side of the rifle range to provide 

for additional safety.  Side berms shall be a minimum of 15’. 

5. All berms shall be free from rocks, stones or objects that may tend to increase the 

possibility of ricochets. 

6. The surface of the entire range shall be relatively clear of any objects, stones, or 

excessive growth that may tend to enhance the possibility of ricochets, or create 

bad footing conditions.  The entire range shooting area shall be relatively flat and 

level. 

7. A line of target brackets or holders shall be placed on the target area.  Materials 

shall be designed so as not to create any ricochet hazard. 

8. The target line shall be placed no more than 20’ in from of the impact berm.  There 

shall be a space between each target bracket or holder, approximately equal to the 

width of one target.   The top of the targets, when attached to the brackets or holder, 

should be approximately 6’ off the ground and in a relatively straight and level line. 

9. The firing line shall be clearly marked on the ground surface across the entire width 

of each firing range.  The numbered distance shall be placed on both sides of each 

firing line to indicate the distance from the firing line to the target. 

10. There shall be an audible sound system to amplify voice commands.  The sound 

system shall enable the range officer to project loud and clear voice commands to 

all shooters during actual shooting exercises.  An adequate communications system 

shall be established to allow all shooting officers, and other staff to communicate 

with one another, and should be conveniently located to minimize the loss of time 

between an emergency and the call for assistance.  The system shall also be capable 

of contacting the appropriate assistance in case of injuries or other unforeseen 

emergencies. 

11. A control tower shall be placed at the center point of the range, approximately 15 

to 20 yards behind the farthest firing line, and provide the range office with a clear 

unobstructed view of all shooters and the range personnel.  The floor decking shall 

be at least 6’higher than the ground.  A flag pole, for displaying a red flag or banner 

whenever the range is in use, shall be installed close to or attached directly to the 

control tower.  The top of this pole should be at least 26’ higher than ground level.  

The flag or banner should be large enough to be conspicuously viewed from any 

location in the range area. 

12. Adequate lighting shall be provided as determined by the Zoning Administrator. 

13. A rest or break area shall be available in a location that is safe from any firing line. 

14. A security fence shall be installed to keep other pedestrians and vehicles from 

entering the shooting area while in use. 

15. Adequate parking shall be provided as determined by the Zoning Administrator. 

16. The range shall contain some form of storage shed or field office.  The structure 

shall be relatively secure for the storage of target materials. 

17. Any future site or building improvements to the site will require site plan review. 

Public Hearing - Page 10



County of Sussex, Virginia  CUP #2025-01 
 

 
 

5 | P a g e  
 

18. The existing entrance that is proposed for use as the main entrance to the site shall 

be improved to accommodate 2-way traffic and shall meet the moderate volume 

commercial entrance design standard as shown in Figure 4-15 of Appendix F of the 

VDOT Road Design Manual. 

19. The area around entrance shall be cleared of brush and small trees in order to make 

the entrance more visible and to provide increased sight distance to the satisfaction 

of VDOT.  

20. A new commercial entrance permit shall be obtained by the applicant from the 

Department for the proposed site entrance. 

21. The site shall provide a toilet facility for men and women, handwashing stations, 

and potable water available for its employees prior to full operation.  

22. Suitable access to the range site shall be provided for emergency vehicles. 

Emergency personnel should be familiar with the access road(s) and location of the 

range site.  Additionally, emergency personnel shall be notified of the hours of 

operation for the shooting range. 

23. Follow EPA Best Management Practices regarding Lead Management and 

Reclamation. 

24. The Blackwater Outdoor Shooting Range shall be in full operation within 2 years 

of obtaining the CUP or the CUP shall be null and void. 

 

Following the Planning Commission Meeting 

 

Staff reached out directly to Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) in regards to the public 

questions in concerns with potential lead contamination. See attached response from DEQ. 

 

In summary, DEQ stated the following: 

• DEQ has the full authority from US EPA to investigate and/or enforce any correction 

actions in relation to lead and Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) 

throughout Virginia. DEQ would investigate any complaints, determine if off-site pollution 

concerns are valid, and determine what corrective actions or remediation may be necessary. 

• In addition to the County requiring the project to follow EPA guidance Best Management 

Practices for Lead- Outdoor Shooting Ranges, DEQ recommend that the County consider 

requiring the Shooting Range operator to have liability insurance that would cover any 

potential on-site or off-site pollution remediation. 

• DEQ also suggested the shooting range may want to consider establishing its own 

Environmental Management System (EMS) equivalent to the E3 Level of VEEP that is 

certified every three years by a third party-auditor.  

*Note: Having an EMS does not guarantee regulatory compliance, however, it is a 

valuable tool to help with regulatory  compliance and reduce environmental 

footprint/impact. 

 

 

 

 

 

Public Hearing - Page 11



County of Sussex, Virginia  CUP #2025-01 
 

 
 

6 | P a g e  
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

 DEQ Response to lead contamination  

 Application 

 Statement of Reasons Letter 

 Property Description   

 Site Plans 

 

Public Hearing - Page 12



Outlook

Re: Outdoor Shooting Range Environmental Guidance

From Boisvert, Keith (DEQ) <Keith.Boisvert@deq.virginia.gov>
Date Thu 3/27/2025 2:22 PM
To Wilke, Timothy (DEQ) <Timothy.Wilke@deq.virginia.gov>; Michael Poarch <mpoarch@sussexcountyva.gov>
Cc Scott, Ashby (DEQ) <Ashby.Scott@deq.virginia.gov>; Woodruff, Melinda (DEQ) <Melinda.Woodruff@deq.virginia.gov>

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not follow guidance, click links, or open attachments unless you know the content is safe.

 

Mr. Poarch,
 
An Environmental Management System (EMS) is a valuable tool to help with regulatory compliance and reduce environmental footprint.   However, the Virginia Environmental Excellence Program
(VEEP) requires its members to maintain a certain level of regulatory compliance.  If a facility does not meet the compliance requirement it may not be eligible for the program.  So, a facility might
have a fully functional and conformant EMS but might not be eligible for VEEP due to issues with regulatory compliance.
 
I would suggest an EMS equivalent to the E3 Level of VEEP (EMS Track Framework | Virginia DEQ), that is certified (every three years) by a third-party auditor.  The facility can join VEEP on top of
that, if they like.  VEEP does provide recognition benefits and eligibility for some permit fee discounts.
 
I am happy to discuss further.

Keith A. Boisvert
Environmental Specialist II, Office of Pollution
Prevention
Virginia Department of Environmental Quality 
1111 E. Main St., Suite 1400 
Richmond, VA 23219 
804-774-8261

From: Wilke, Timothy (DEQ) <Timothy.Wilke@deq.virginia.gov>
Sent: Thursday, March 27, 2025 2:01 PM
To: Michael Poarch <mpoarch@sussexcountyva.gov>
Cc: Boisvert, Keith (DEQ) <Keith.Boisvert@deq.virginia.gov>; Scott, Ashby (DEQ) <Ashby.Scott@deq.virginia.gov>; Woodruff, Melinda (DEQ) <Melinda.Woodruff@deq.virginia.gov>
Subject: RE: Outdoor Shooting Range Environmental Guidance
 

Mr. Poarch,

 

In regard to the insurance provider question – DEQ cannot refer or recommend any particular insurance provider since that could be seen as an endorsement by the state. I would
advise you perform an internet search for an insurance broker, and they should be able to direct you several companies from there.

 

 

Tim W. Wilke
Permitting Ombudsman

Office of Permitting Assistance

Virginia Department of Environmental Quality
1111 East Main Street, Suite 1400
Richmond, Virginia 23219

804-698-0989

 

 

From: Wilke, Timothy (DEQ) <Timothy.Wilke@deq.virginia.gov>
Sent: Thursday, March 27, 2025 1:46 PM
To: Michael Poarch <mpoarch@sussexcountyva.gov>
Cc: Boisvert, Keith (DEQ) <Keith.Boisvert@deq.virginia.gov>; Scott, Ashby (DEQ) <Ashby.Scott@deq.virginia.gov>; Woodruff, Melinda (DEQ) <Melinda.Woodruff@deq.virginia.gov>
Subject: RE: Outdoor Shooting Range Environmental Guidance

 

Mr. Poarch,

 

If a facility (such as a shooting range) were to have an EMS, DEQ’s Office of Pollution Prevention (OPP) would like them to be in VEEP. However, making the operation of some entity
contingent on VEEP membership may pose a problem.  In order to be a member of VEEP a facility needs to maintain a certain level of compliance ‘Record of Sustained Compliance’. 

4/30/25, 2:34 PM Mail - Michael Poarch - Outlook

https://outlook.office.com/mail/id/AAQkAGI2OTc5OTdiLTNjOGItNDRkMi04YTMyLWU3OTIwYzc3MTgxNwAQAHDEZV3owABGrQrGnREexpY%3D 1/5

Public Hearing - Page 13

https://www.deq.virginia.gov/our-programs/pollution-prevention/virginia-environmental-excellence-program/framework
https://www.deq.virginia.gov/
https://www.deq.virginia.gov/home
https://law.lis.virginia.gov/vacode/title10.1/chapter11.1/section10.1-1187.1/


If they don't, they may be asked to withdraw from or be dismissed from the program. Having an EMS does not guarantee regulatory compliance.

 

I would suggest an EMS equivalent to the E3 Level of VEEP (EMS Track Framework | Virginia DEQ), that is certified (every three years) by a third-party auditor. The facility can join
VEEP on top of that, if they like, but I don't think that VEEP membership should be an operating requirement.  

 

If you have any further questions, please let us know.

 

Thank you.

 

Tim W. Wilke
Permitting Ombudsman

Office of Permitting Assistance

Virginia Department of Environmental Quality
1111 East Main Street, Suite 1400
Richmond, Virginia 23219

804-698-0989

 

 

From: Michael Poarch <mpoarch@sussexcountyva.gov>
Sent: Thursday, March 27, 2025 11:48 AM
To: Wilke, Timothy (DEQ) <Timothy.Wilke@deq.virginia.gov>
Cc: Boisvert, Keith (DEQ) <Keith.Boisvert@deq.virginia.gov>; Scott, Ashby (DEQ) <Ashby.Scott@deq.virginia.gov>; Woodruff, Melinda (DEQ) <Melinda.Woodruff@deq.virginia.gov>
Subject: Re: Outdoor Shooting Range Environmental Guidance

 

Good Morning,

 

Thank you for your quick responses and feedback.  In regards to pollution liability insurance, do you know or have a list of different providers that actually provide this type of
insurance?

 

In addition,  I know the VEEP is a voluntary program. However, would any of the following conditions would be appropriate for the County to consider as a requirement in
addition  to:

Require a new shooting range to create an Environmental Management System that is acceptable to DEQ

Becoming and maintain participation in the VEEP 

 

In a case that neither of two are recommended, is there alternative language that you would suggest? 

 

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

M. Poarch

County Planner

Sussex County Planning & Zoning Department 

From: Wilke, Timothy (DEQ) <Timothy.Wilke@deq.virginia.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, March 26, 2025 4:42 PM
To: Michael Poarch <mpoarch@sussexcountyva.gov>
Cc: Boisvert, Keith (DEQ) <Keith.Boisvert@deq.virginia.gov>; Scott, Ashby (DEQ) <Ashby.Scott@deq.virginia.gov>; Woodruff, Melinda (DEQ) <Melinda.Woodruff@deq.virginia.gov>
Subject: RE: Outdoor Shooting Range Environmental Guidance

 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not follow guidance, click links, or open attachments unless you know the content is safe.

 

4/30/25, 2:34 PM Mail - Michael Poarch - Outlook

https://outlook.office.com/mail/id/AAQkAGI2OTc5OTdiLTNjOGItNDRkMi04YTMyLWU3OTIwYzc3MTgxNwAQAHDEZV3owABGrQrGnREexpY%3D 2/5

Public Hearing - Page 14

https://www.deq.virginia.gov/our-programs/pollution-prevention/virginia-environmental-excellence-program/framework
https://www.deq.virginia.gov/home


You don't often get email from timothy.wilke@deq.virginia.gov. Learn why this is important

Mr. Poarch,

Thank you for reaching out to Virginia DEQ regarding this. I am happy to answer your questions.

It is DEQ’s recommendation that in addition to requiring “the project shall follow Environmental Protection Agency's guidance Best Management Practices for Lead Outdoor
Shooting Ranges", we also recommend that Sussex County require the Shooting Range operator have pollution liability insurance. Such an insurance policy would cover the cost of
any on-site or off-site pollution remediation.

1. Who would have the authority to investigate and/or enforce any corrective actions in relation to lead?

a. The Virginia Department of Environmental Quality has full authority from US EPA to investigate and/or enforce any correction actions in relation to lead and RCRA
throughout Virginia.

2. What role would the state or federal agencies play if an issue were to occur?

a. Virginia DEQ and US EPA would work together regarding any corrective actions and/or enforcement actions.

3. If the contamination spread beyond the site itself, who would be responsible in resolve those issue?

a. Virginia DEQ would investigate any complaints and determine if off-site pollution concerns are valid and would determine what corrective actions and/or remediation
may be necessary. The pollution liability insurance policy mentioned above would come into play here.

If you have any additional questions, please let DEQ know. I have included Ashby Scott and Melinda Woodruff to this email as they would best be able to answer any further
questions regarding this topic.

Thank you.

Tim W. Wilke
Permitting Ombudsman

Office of Permitting Assistance

Virginia Department of Environmental Quality
1111 East Main Street, Suite 1400
Richmond, Virginia 23219

804-698-0989

From: Boisvert, Keith (DEQ) <Keith.Boisvert@deq.virginia.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, March 26, 2025 12:07 PM
To: Michael Poarch <mpoarch@sussexcountyva.gov>
Cc: Wilke, Timothy (DEQ) <Timothy.Wilke@deq.virginia.gov>
Subject: Re: Outdoor Shooting Range Environmental Guidance

Hello Mr. Poarch,

Unfortunately, I am not confident in my abilities to answer your regulatory questions.  However, I have been advised to include Tim Wilke on this message.  I believe Tim might be
more helpful than I can be in this instance.  

Please contact me if you have future questions in which you think I might be of assistance.  Thanks

Keith A. Boisvert

Environmental Specialist II, Office of Pollution Prevention

Virginia Department of Environmental Quality 

1111 E. Main St., Suite 1400 

4/30/25, 2:34 PM Mail - Michael Poarch - Outlook

https://outlook.office.com/mail/id/AAQkAGI2OTc5OTdiLTNjOGItNDRkMi04YTMyLWU3OTIwYzc3MTgxNwAQAHDEZV3owABGrQrGnREexpY%3D 3/5

Public Hearing - Page 15

https://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification
https://www.deq.virginia.gov/home
https://www.deq.virginia.gov/


  CAUTION:  This Email originated from OUTSIDE of the COV. Do not open attachments or click links unless this email comes from a known sender and you know the
content is safe..

Richmond, VA 23219 

804-774-8261

 

From: Michael Poarch <mpoarch@sussexcountyva.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, March 25, 2025 5:32 PM
To: Boisvert, Keith (DEQ) <Keith.Boisvert@deq.virginia.gov>
Subject: Re: Outdoor Shooting Range Environmental Guidance

 

Good Afternoon,

 

I hope you are doing well. I 'm reaching out to see if you can provide me some more insight on some concerns or questions in regards to lead mitigation for outdoor shooting
range. The County is considering another shooting range for an conditional use permit. The County has included in one of its condition that "the project shall follow
Environmental Protection Agency's guidance Best Management Practices for Lead Outdoor Shooting Ranges." However, there are some concerns in relation to what if the
applicant doesn't follow guidelines and it leads to an impact to the environment and adjacent property owners such contamination to the air and/or groundwater.  

 

1. Who would have the authority to investigate and/or enforce any corrective actions in relation to lead? 

2. What role would the state or federal agencies play if an issue were to occur?

3. If the contamination spread beyond the site itself, who would be responsible in resolve those issue?

 

Based on your expertise, do you have any suggestions to ensure that the EPA guidelines and Best Managements Practices for Lead Reclamation are followed? 

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

M. Poarch

County Planner

Sussex County Planning & Zoning Department 

 

From: Boisvert, Keith (DEQ) <Keith.Boisvert@deq.virginia.gov>
Sent: Friday, October 4, 2024 9:11 AM
To: Michael Poarch <mpoarch@sussexcountyva.gov>
Subject: Outdoor Shooting Range Environmental Guidance

 

You don't often get email from keith.boisvert@deq.virginia.gov. Learn why this is important

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not follow guidance, click links, or open attachments unless you know the content is safe.

 

Mr. Poarch,

 

I am responding to your request to the Virginia Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) for recommendations or general guidelines in regard to mitigating lead contamination
from an outdoor shooting range (ISP Shooting Range and Defensive Training Center). Please see the Environmental Protection Agency's guidance Best Management Practices for
Lead Outdoor Shooting Ranges | US EPA.

 

Another resource is the Arlington-Fairfax Chapter of the Izaak Walton League.  They maintain an Environmental Management System (EMS) Environmental Management System
(EMS) – The Arlington-Fairfax Chapter Inc. (arlingtonfairfax-iwla.org) with many techniques for reducing the environmental impact of their operations.   These may be applicable to
the new facility on a case-by-case situation.

 

Lastly, the new shooting range may want to consider establishing its own EMS.  DEQ would be available to assist with such an endeavor. We also maintain a recognition program for
facilities that have an EMS called the Virginia Environmental Excellence Program | Virginia DEQ     

4/30/25, 2:34 PM Mail - Michael Poarch - Outlook

https://outlook.office.com/mail/id/AAQkAGI2OTc5OTdiLTNjOGItNDRkMi04YTMyLWU3OTIwYzc3MTgxNwAQAHDEZV3owABGrQrGnREexpY%3D 4/5

Public Hearing - Page 16

https://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification
https://www.epa.gov/lead/best-management-practices-lead-outdoor-shooting-ranges-0
https://www.epa.gov/lead/best-management-practices-lead-outdoor-shooting-ranges-0
https://wp.arlingtonfairfax-iwla.org/ems/
https://wp.arlingtonfairfax-iwla.org/ems/
https://www.deq.virginia.gov/our-programs/pollution-prevention/virginia-environmental-excellence-program


The Virginia Environmental Excellence Program (VEEP) is a voluntary, non-regulatory program that promotes the use of Environmental Management Systems in Virginia.  DEQ
believes maintaining an EMS is a valuable step toward managing environmental impacts for any facility.

If you have questions or need further assistance, please don't hesitate to contact me.  Thanks

 

Keith A. Boisvert

Environmental Specialist II, Office of Pollution Prevention

Virginia Department of Environmental Quality 

1111 E. Main St., Suite 1400 

Richmond, VA 23219 

804-774-8261

 

4/30/25, 2:34 PM Mail - Michael Poarch - Outlook

https://outlook.office.com/mail/id/AAQkAGI2OTc5OTdiLTNjOGItNDRkMi04YTMyLWU3OTIwYzc3MTgxNwAQAHDEZV3owABGrQrGnREexpY%3D 5/5

Public Hearing - Page 17

https://www.deq.virginia.gov/


Public Hearing - Page 18



Public Hearing - Page 19



Public Hearing - Page 20



Public Hearing - Page 21



Public Hearing - Page 22



Public Hearing - Page 23



Public Hearing - Page 24



Public Hearing - Page 25



Public Hearing - Page 26



Public Hearing - Page 27



Public Hearing - Page 28



Public Hearing - Page 29



Public Hearing - Page 30



Public Hearing - Page 31



Public Hearing - Page 32



Public Hearing - Page 33



Public Hearing - Page 34



Public Hearing - Page 35



Public Hearing - Page 36



Public Hearing - Page 37



Public Hearing - Page 38



Public Hearing - Page 39



Public Hearing - Page 40



Public Hearing - Page 41



Public Hearing - Page 42



Public Hearing - Page 43



Public Hearing - Page 44



Public Hearing - Page 45



Public Hearing - Page 46



Public Hearing - Page 47



Public Hearing - Page 48



Public Hearing - Page 49



Public Hearing - Page 50



Public Hearing - Page 51



Public Hearing - Page 52



Public Hearing - Page 53



Public Hearing - Page 54



Public Hearing - Page 55



Public Hearing - Page 56



Public Hearing - Page 57



Public Hearing - Page 58



Public Hearing - Page 59



Public Hearing - Page 60



Public Hearing - Page 61



Public Hearing - Page 62



Public Hearing - Page 63



Public Hearing - Page 64



Public Hearing - Page 65



Public Hearing - Page 66



Public Hearing - Page 67



Public Hearing - Page 68



Public Hearing - Page 69



Public Hearing - Page 70



Public Hearing - Page 71



BOARD ACTION FORM 
 
Agenda Item:   Unfinished Business #8.01 
 
Subject:  County Fiscal Policy 
 
Board Meeting Date:  May 15 2025 
 
============================================================================== 
 
Summary:  This item was placed back on the agenda by the request of Vice Chair Tolliver on 
behalf of the Finance Committee   
 
Recommendation:   TBD.  
 
Attachment: Will be provided at the meeting 
 
============================================================================== 
 
ACTION:  TBD 
 
MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     
 
             

             

              

Member Aye Nay    Member Aye Nay 
 
Baicy  ___ ___    Jones  ___ ___ 

Fly  ___ ___    Tolliver ___ ___  

Futrell  ___ ___    Tyler  ___ ___ 

White  ___ ___      


	#1 May 15  2025 BOS Agenda draft
	#2.01 Minutes
	#2.01-1 3 6 2025 Finance Committee Meeting Minutes
	#2.01-2 4 3 2025 Minutes
	#2.01-4  4 17 2025  Regular BOS meeting minutes (005)

	#2.02 Warrants and Vouchers
	#2.03-#2.07 Consent
	#2.03 Treasurer's Report
	#2.04-1 BD Cover
	#2.04-2 bld of April 2025
	#2.04-3 April 2025 Report
	#2.04-4 SD Cover
	#2.04-5 Sheriff's Report for April 2025
	#2.05-1 Regional Water Supply
	#2.05-2 RegionalWaterSupplyPlan.Sussex
	#2.06-1 OEMS
	#2.06-2 OEMS Return Funds
	#2.07 Literary Loan

	#3 Recognition
	#3.01-1 RECOGNITION Leah Brantley
	#3.02-1 VDOT
	#3.02-2 SSYP Cover Page (8)
	#3.02-3 SSYP Construction Report (4)
	#3.03-1 ASM
	#3.03-2
	#3.04-1 Board Meeting Action Form - Presentation - Nottoway River Recreational Plan
	#3.04-2 Sussex County Nottoway River Blue-Greenway Master Plan - Final Draft

	#4 Public Hearing
	#4.01-1  Public Hearing Budget
	#4.01-2 Budget Message 2025-26
	#4.02-1 Public Hearing Form- Blackwater Outdoor Shooting Range 5.15.25
	#4.02-2 5.15.25 BOS for Blackwater Shooting Range
	Staff Report- Blackwater Outdoor Shooting Range.final draft (Autosaved).pdf
	5.15.25 BOS for Blackwater Shooting Range
	5.15.25 BOS for Blackwater Shooting Range
	BOSR DEQ
	BOSR correspondance- 4.30.25




	#8.01-1 Fiscal Policy



